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CORPORATE INFORMATION

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
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Agriculture Bank of China
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Hong Kong
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As to Hong Kong Law
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Cayman lIslands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Head Office

Tower Il, No.32 Lingyin Road
Xihu District, Hangzhou 310007
Zhejiang Province

People’s Republic of China

Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

AFE R
SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

SHARE INFORMATION

Place of listing : Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited

Stock Code : 00090

Board Lot : 2000 shares

Financial Year End : 31 December

SHAREHOLDERS’ CALENDAR

Last Share Registration Date 4 June 2018
(for attending Annual
General Meeting)

Closure of Register of Members 5 June 2018 to
(for attending Annual 8 June 2018
General Meeting)

Annual General Meeting 8 June 2018

Last Share Registration Date 13 June 2018
(for payment of final dividena)

Closure of Register of Members 14 June 2018

(for payment of final dividena)
Payment Date of Final Dividend

INVESTOR RELATIONS

On or around 27 June 2018

Email: hupo@amberenergy.com.cn

WEBSITE

http://www.amberenergy.com.hk
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
LR

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—BHILEE

2017
—E—tF
RMB’000
ARETR

Revenue gy 348,364 279,173 24.8%
Profit from operations 18 R 90,562 112,813 -19.7%
Profit attributable to equity AN A IR R A
shareholders of the Company gl 34,222 41,703 -17.9%
Basic earnings per share BREXRBF RMB0.075 RMB0.091 -17.6%
AR#%0.0757T NG {Elb
Dividend per share BRERE
Interim i HA N Nil £ 0%
Proposed final R R HR HK$0.03 HK$0.03 0%

0.03%& T 0.03%8 7T

As at 31 December
R+=-A=+—-8
2017
—F—-tF¥
RMB’000
AREBTR

Total assets mEE 1,283,869 1,413,623 -9.2%
Shareholders’ equity IR R = 521,339 483,913 7.7%
Net asset value per share' BREEFHE RMB1.14 RMB1.06 7.5%
AR¥1.14T AR¥1.067T
Closing market price per share FhEmE HK$1.10 HK$1.23 -10.6%
1.10% T 12887
Net debt? R 7% % 582 604,144 719,944 -16.1%
Total capital® BB 1,125,483 1,208,857 -6.5%
Gearing ratio* BEEAL & 53.68% 59.80% -6.1%
Notes: B 5
1 Shareholders’ equity 1 AR =
Number of ordinary shares in issue BETEBEREE
2. Total debts (including all interest-bearing borrowings and 2. BEREE (BEMETEEERREER) —BHe kB
shareholder’s loan) — Cash and cash equivalents SEED
3. Shareholders’ equity + Net debt 3. B SRAE S +E TS F R
4. Net debt 4. B8
Total Capital B4
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EERME
Dear Shareholders,

In 2017, power plants under the Group are committed
to maintaining safe production and sound operation, as
well as active improvement of production process and
business development, decreasing production costs
and optimizing power generation, and has achieved
heat production for supply in August 2017.

Driven by favorable factors such as rebound of demand
for power consumption in Zhejiang Province and power
production for heating supply this year, revenue of the
Group for the year 2017 increased 24.8% as compared
to the previous year. At the same time, as the
Company changed the depreciation method for certain
property, plant and equipment (mainly major generator
equipment) of power plants under the Group from
the original “unit-of-production” method to “straight-
line” method since 1 January 2017, the resulting sharp
increase in depreciation expenses as compared with
the previous year ultimately led to a year-on-year
decrease of 17.6% in profit for the year. The Company
will continue to actively develop and implement the
favorable power generation mode compliant with
“Dual Tariff Policy” of natural gas power generation in
Zhejiang Province in order to production efficiency and
profitability of the Group.

2018 is a critical year as it marks the start of the
implementation of the spirit of the 19th National
Congress of the Communist Party of China and the
continuation of the implementation of the“13th Five-
Year Plan”. Good performance of energy work is of
great significance to promoting energy transformation
and development, improving quality and efficiency
of energy development, enhancing energy safety
protection capabilities and standards, and facilitating
sustainable economic and social development in the
new era. The PRC government continues to push
forward the progress of different reforms (especially
tax reform of relatively strong industry inclination), step
up its efforts in structural reform as well as industry
upgrade and restructure. The Group has engaged in
clean energy industry for many years, and has nurtured
an excellent management team and management
system well suited to its own development. The
Group will actively explore and seek new development
opportunities in the new era.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

In 2018, the PRC government will push forward the
establishment of production, supply, storage and
sales system of natural gas, accelerate the increase
of reserve and productions levels of domestic natural
gas, vigorously promote the interconnection between
the natural gas infrastructure, improve reserve peak
adjusting system, orderly develop distributed natural
gas energy and peak adjusting natural gas power
plants. With all four natural gas power plants under
the Group are peak adjusting power plants and the
Company has proven capability and experience
in investment, construction and operation of peak
adjusting power plants, the Company will pay close
attention to new investment opportunities. Meanwhile,
the Group will actively explore the feasibility of
developing centralised energy supply in a distributed
form of its power plants through natural gas power
generation. In addition, the Company is also planning
for the development of other clean energy projects,
active launch related exploration and feasibility studies
of distributed energy, micro power grids and energy
storage etc., active expansion of new businesses, and
enhancement of projects reserve for the current and
long-term development, with an intention to expand
the market share and influence of the Group in the
clean energy supply market in China. In January 2018,
as part of the Group’s exploration of the development
of photovoltaic projects, Jing-Xing Power Plant under
the Company was chosen as the first pilot site to
implement a superstructure distributed photovoltaic
transformation project and the first phase of the
project was launched. It is expected to be connected
to a power grid and put into operation around the
end of March in 2018. After achieving success of the
photovoltaic project of Jing-Xing Power Plant, there are
plans to gradually extend it to other power plants under
the Group.

In addition, the Group will also endeavor to explore
potential investment and development opportunities in
the PRC market to enrich and strengthen operation and
assets portfolio of the Company, thereby enhancing
future profitability and scale of the Group, and creating
maximum returns for Shareholders.

EER®BE

E-Z-N\&F BREEDEIRAREHRH
HEE MREARARIEHELE 2 HHE
AAREMREEBER TERARFEER
R AR ERRAARD A ERMRAR
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
=+ +

EERWME

| would like to take this opportunity to extend my
heartfelt gratitude to shareholders for their constant
support and to all directors, the management team and

all staff for their dedication, as well as all partners for
their tremendous support.

In the future, the Group will continue to do its utmost
with full confidence to achieve outstanding results.

WEI Junyong
Chairman

Zhejiang Province, China, 27 March 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

The Group is mainly engaged in the development,
operation and management of natural gas-fired power
plants. The Group has four wholly-owned gas-fired
power plants in Zhejiang province and the aggregate
installed capacity was approximately 457MW.

During the year, with the increase in overall power
demand in Zhejiang Province in 2017, the Group’s
overall production volume increased by 99.18% to
291,310MWh from 146,251MWh in the previous year.
At the same time, in response to the increase in overall
production volume, natural gas usage also increased
by 101.45% to 68,815,000m® from 34,160,000m? in
the previous year.

During the year under review, the Price Bureau of
Zhejiang Province announced that, starting from 1
September 2017, the volume tariff of natural gas
power generating units would be adjusted downward
by RMBO0.013/kWh based on prices inclusive of
value added tax (“VAT”). As a result, the volume
tariff (inclusive of VAT) of Hangzhou Amber Blue Sky
Natural Gas Power Generation Co., Ltd. (“Blue Sky
Power Plant”), Zhejiang Amber De-Neng Natural Gas
Power Generation Co., Ltd. (“De-Neng Power Plant”)
and Zhejiang Amber Jing-Xing Natural Gas Power
Generation Co., Ltd. (“Jing-Xing Power Plant”) under
the Group was reduced to RMBO0.567/kWh from
RMBO0.58/kWh in the previous year, representing a
decrease of about 2.2%; the volume tariff of Amber
(Anji) Gas Turbine Thermal Power Co., Ltd. (“Anji Power
Plant”) under the Group was cut to RMBO0.507/kWh
from RMBO0.52/kWh in the previous year, representing
a decrease of about 2.5%; and the capacity tariff
remained unchanged. In addition, the Price Bureau
of Zhejiang Province announced that, starting from
1 September 2017, the price of natural gas for
non-residential purposes (inclusive of VAT) would
be reduced by RMBO0.10/m® to RMB2.21/m? from
RMB2.31/m?, representing a decrease of about 4.3%.
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d MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

BB W R

Equity installed capacity EoRkHEE
R-ZE—+F+-fA=+—RB KrE£EEEER

RENBERIRERERBTEWNT

As at 31 December 2017, the equity installed capacity

of power plants held and operated by the Group is as
follows:

Blue Sky Power Plant Natural gas 112 100 112
EXEH RAR

De-Neng Power Plant Natural gas 112 100 112
mREER RAR

Jing-Xing Power Plant Natural gas 75 100 75
R ELE R RAR

Anji Power Plant Natural gas 158 100 158
L B RAFR

Total 457 457
“st

Production volume BREE

In order to facilitate the trial implementation of the BREeIEE - E—RF—A— BT

dual tariff policy for natural gas (“Dual Tariff Policy”) by
Zhejiang Province since 1 January 2015, the relevant
government authorities have organised the 2017
production plan for natural gas power generating units
based on the maximum demand within the power grid.
In response to the increase in overall power demand
in Zhejiang Province in 2017 and in order to meet the
maximum demand within the power grid, the relevant
government authorities made adjustments to the annual
production plan of the four power plants under the
Group, which increased the production tasks of the
Group within the year accordingly. For the year ended
31 December 2017, the Group’s production volume
was 291,310MWh, representing an increase of 99.18%
as compared to 146,251MWh in the previous year.

10 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED ¥tI82)R AR A A
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
BEEWNRD A

During the year, the Group’s actual power generation RER AEEBERZE/NEFHLAT:
hours are as follows:

2017
—F-t#F

(hour)
(/NEF)

Blue Sky Power Plant ERER 110

De-Neng Power Plant EEE B 302 185 63.2
Jing-Xing Power Plant REER 286 362 -21.0
Anji Power Plant ZEER 1,416 437 224.0

Total st 2,114 1,247 69.5

According to the 2018 Unified Production Plan for BENMNIAKEEZHAEERTENRER T

Natural Gas Power Generating Units issued to the four EN T - N\FRARFFARABEETE K
power plants under the Group by Zhejiang Province SR - )\FHNRETE/BHEOT:

Economic and Information Commission, the Group’s
planned generation hours for 2018 are as follows:

2018
—T-N\E
(Planned)
(&t&l)
(hour)
(/NEF)

Blue Sky Power Plant EXEHR 300 110 172.7

De-Neng Power Plant TEEEER 300 302 -0.7

Jing-Xing Power Plant* L R 1,600 286 459.4

Anji Power Plant ZE B R 1,000 1,416 -29.4

Total st 3,200 2,114 51.4

* As Jing-Xing Power Plant is a regional dispatchable power plant, * RAEMAMAER  — T \FEEHEBHENY
the planned generation hours for 2018 is subject to change and the EEREE ) RYKEARRES S BERAEEMA
actual generation hours may be adjusted according to the overall PR % -

local power demand.
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o MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
BEEN W&

On-grid tariff

On-grid tariff is determined by the Price Bureau of
Zhejiang Province after taking into account the types
of fuel, cost structure and operating profit of similar
power plants within the provincial grid. According to the
“Notice Regarding the Trial Implementation of Dual Tariff
for Natural Gas Power Generating Units in Zhejiang
Province” issued by the Price Bureau of Zhejiang
Province, the Dual Tariff Policy has been implemented
in trial by Zhejiang Province since 1 January 2015.
Affected by the relevant policy, the Group’s revenue
is mainly divided into two parts, namely volume tariff
revenue and capacity tariff revenue.

e

In September 2017, the Price Bureau of Zhejiang
Province announced that, starting from 1 September
2017, the volume tariff of natural gas power generating
units would be adjusted downward by RMB0.013/
kWh based on prices inclusive of VAT. As a result,
the volume tariff (inclusive of VAT) of Blue Sky Power
Plant, De-Neng Power Plant and Jing-Xing Power Plant
under the Group was reduced to RMB0.567/kWh from
RMBO0.58/kWh in the previous year, representing a
decrease of about 2.2%; the volume tariff of Anji Power
Plant under the Group was cut to RMBO0.507/kWh from
RMBO0.52/kWh in the previous year, representing a
decrease of about 2.5%.

During the year, the capacity tariff (inclusive of VAT) of
Blue Sky Power Plant, De-Neng Power Plant and Jing-
Xing Power Plant under the Group was RMB470/kW
per year; the capacity tariff (inclusive of VAT) of Anji
Power Plant under the Group was RMB680/kW per
year. The capacity tariff was the same as the previous
year and remained unchanged.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED IEIaEIRER A A

LHEE
FHEEEDENIAMERZEEANERTR
BERAMPIERR A BEE LR L5 NRE
E-RENIENER BREEXAREE
BAATTRE I EERBEA)  HTEB-F
—hFE-A-BRATMEBHNEERR -XEH
BRTE AEENRRREB DKM EBN
EEEBEWATNETETERA-

RZE—tFNA HIEAYWEREMR B =
T—+tFNA—HERABKARBEHRAS
EEE REEENEETRARABRARE
0.013- AW AEB TEBEXRER =S
BAREERNSEEREEEERLEFE
FTERFARECSSTT N AZEGTEKARE
0.56770  BIE#)2.2% : NBLZHEMABE =
FETRBARKOS T ITAZETARAR
¥£0.507 7T * B 1@ £92.5% ©

FRNCAEB TBEKREMR ZETHMRE
ERMNEHERTSEEEASFETREAR
Ba70m: TBXEERAUAEEFETREAR
K680 - AEBREE FFERF—B WES
Ejjo



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

All the four power plants under the Group use natural
gas as a fuel for power generation. Natural gas is also
the only source of fuel for the Group and is provided by
Zhejiang Province Natural Gas Development Company,
the sole supplier of the Group.

The natural gas price is determined by the Price Bureau
of Zhejiang Province. According to the “Notice of the
Price Bureau of Zhejiang Province on Strengthening
the Regulation of Natural Gas Prices for a Reduction in
the Prices of Natural Gas for Non-residential Purposes”
issued by the Price Bureau of Zhejiang Province in
September 2017, starting from 1 September 2017, the
natural gas price (inclusive of VAT) offered by Zhejiang
Province Natural Gas Development Company to the
Group was adjusted downward from RMB2.31/m® to
RMB2.21/m?, representing a decrease of about 4.3%.

During the year, the average unit fuel cost of the Group
was approximately RMB484.57/MWh, representing
an increase of 1.20% as compared to approximately
RMB478.83/MWh in the previous year. With the
increase in production volume during the year, natural
gas usage also increased accordingly. For the year
ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s natural gas
usage amounted to 68,815,000m?, representing an
increase of 101.45% as compared to 34,160,000m?3
in the previous year; fuel cost was RMB141,161,000,
representing an increase of 101.57% as compared to
RMB70,030,000 in the previous year.

Anji Power Plant under the Group formally put heating
into production in August 2017, mainly providing steam
for manufacturers in proximity to its heating pipelines.
For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
sold steam amounting to 34,683 tons at an average
price (inclusive of VAT) of approximately RMB250/ton,
generating revenue of RMB7,808,000 (2016: RMBnil).

AND ANALYSIS
L= DNl
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During the year under review, benefitting from the
increase in overall power demand in Zhejiang Province
in 2017, the Group’s revenue for the year increased
by 24.78% when compared with the previous year.
However, given that the Group decided to change the
depreciation method from “unit-of-production” method
to “straight-line” method for certain of its property,
plant and equipment starting from 1 January 2017,
depreciation for the year increased by approximately
RMB34,645,000 as compared to that in last year, finally
resulting in a decrease of RMB7,481,000 in the profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company.
For the year ended 31 December 2017, profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was
RMB34,222,000 (2016: RMB41,703,000); basic and
diluted earnings per share amounted to RMBO0.075,
representing a decrease of 17.58% as compared to
RMBO0.091 in the previous year.

With the trial implementation of the Dual Tariff Policy
by Zhejiang Province starting from 1 January 2015,
the Group’s revenue mainly comprises volume tariff
revenue and capacity tariff revenue. During the year, as
the Group formally put heating into production, revenue
from sales of heat became part of the Group’s revenue.

Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017 amounted to approximately RMB348,364,000,
representing an increase of RMB69,191,000 or 24.78%
as compared to RMB279,173,000 in the previous year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

During the year, the Group’s operating expenses mainly
comprised fuel cost, depreciation and amortisation,
staff costs and administrative expenses. For the year
ended 31 December 2017, operating expenses of
the Group was RMB257,802,000, representing an
increase of RMB91,442,000 or 54.97% as compared
to RMB166,360,000 in the previous year. An increase
in operating expenses was primarily due to the
corresponding increase in production volume for the
year as well as the increase in depreciation expenses
arising from the change in depreciation method during
the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, profit from
operations of the Group was RMB90,562,000,
representing a decrease of RMB22,251,000 or 19.72%
as compared to RMB112,813,000 in the previous year.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, net finance
costs of the Group was RMB32,716,000, representing
a decrease of RMB11,030,000 or 25.21% as
compared to RMB43,746,000 in the previous year. The
decrease in net finance costs was primarily attributable
to the repayment of certain interest-bearing borrowings
by the Group during the year, resulting in a decrease in
relevant finance expenses for the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, income tax of
the Group amounted to RMB25,831,000, representing
a decrease of RMB3,479,000 or 11.87% as compared
to RMB29,310,000 in the previous year. The decrease
in income tax was mainly due to the change of
depreciation method made by the Group during the
year, which increased the depreciation expenses of the
power plants under the Group for the year and resulted
in a decrease in the profit before taxation.
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Earnings per share and final dividend

For the year ended 31 December 2017, profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was
RMB34,222,000 (2016: RMB41,703,000); basic and
diluted earnings per share amounted to RMBO0.075,
representing a decrease of 17.58% as compared to
RMBO0.091 in the previous year.

At the Board meeting held on 27 March 2018, the
Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.03 (2016: HK$0.03) per share for the year ended
31 December 2017. Based on the 458,600,000 (2016:
458,600,000) ordinary shares in issue as at 27 March
2018 (2016: 24 March 2017), the Board recommended
the payment of a final dividend amounting to
HK$13,758,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB11,118,000) (2016: HK$13,758,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB12,194,000)).
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New Development Projects
Wind Power Project

In order to facilitate the clean energy development
strategy of the “13th Five-Year Plan” of China, the
Group will leverage on its internationally-advanced
clean energy and energy saving technologies,
combined with years of investment and development
experience in the field of clean energy and its
understanding on the development trend of clean
energy to provide new, clean and efficient secondary
energy. Currently, the Group is preparing for the
construction of a new wind power project and relevant
planning is in progress. The project has obtained the
government’s planning permission and is now in full
swing. However, as the above project is still in the
planning stage, the Group needs to successfully obtain
various licences, permits and approvals issued by
relevant government authorities and raise sufficient
project development funds to effectively implement the
project. Therefore, the wind power project mentioned
above will depend on the actual development situation
and may not be carried out in the end.
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Photovoltaic Power Project

In line with the industrial policy and sustainable
development strategy of China, and to explore clean
energy sector apart from the natural gas business of
the Group, superstructure construction of distributed
photovoltaic power generating units (the “Photovoltaic
Project”) on top of the existing plant buildings has been
gradually carried out by the Group with aims to provide
the existing plants of the Group and power grids with
new high-quality clean energy through the generation
of photovoltaic power, and to open up new sources of
income and room for business growth for the Group.
Currently, the Group takes Jing-Xing Power Plant as
the first pilot site for the Photovoltaic Project with
planned construction capacity of approximately 500kW
which represents approximately 0.11% of the existing
equity installed capacity of the Group. The Photovoltaic
Project is being constructed in two phases, and the
first phase had been commenced in January 2018 with
a construction capacity of approximately 217kW and
an investment cost of approximately RMB1,600,000.
It is expected to be connected to a power grid and
put into operation around the end of March 2018. The
Group expects that approximately 60% of the power
to be generated will be used for the daily operation of
Jing-Xing Power Plant, while the rest will be sold to
the power grid. After Jing-Xing Power Plant achieved
success from the Photovoltaic Project, the Group may
plan to extend it to the remaining power plants of the
Group.

During the year under review, the Group had no
significant investment activity.

During the year under review, the Group had no major
acquisition and disposal relating to its subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

As at 31 December 2017, cash and cash equivalents of
the Group amounted to RMB75,862,000 (31 December
2016: RMB120,582,000), including HK$22,097,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB18,471,000) and
approximately US$500 (equivalent to approximately
RMB3,000) (31 December 2016: HK$22,770,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB20,368,000) and
approximately US$500 (equivalent to approximately
RMB3,000)).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had current
assets of RMB125,763,000 (31 December
2016: RMB196,473,000), current liabilities
of RMB299,629,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB597,494,000) and net current liabilities
of RMB173,866,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB401,021,000), with a current ratio of 0.42 (31
December 2016: 0.33). The current ratio was improved
mainly because some short-term loans due were
repaid during the year and some short-term loans were
restructured as long-term loans.

Sources of funds of the Group are mainly cash inflows
from operating activities and loans granted by banks
and related parties. The Group regularly monitors
its gearing ratio to control its capital structure. At
the same time, the Group also regularly monitors its
liquidity position, projected liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants, as well as
maintains long-term sound relationships with major
banks to ensure that it has sufficient liquidity to meet its
working capital requirements and future development
needs.

AND ANALYSIS
L= DNl

)

I

R—ZF—tF+=-_A=+—8" Nils’ﬁﬁ
e hIEEEEBY A ARKT5,862,0007T (=
—~"F+=—A=+—H -/\Eﬁ%120,582,000
JC) B A FE22,097,0008 L (FTE AR
#18,471,00070 ) M #7500k 7t (T & AR
¥3,0000t) (ZE—XR"FE+=ZA=+—H:
22,770,000/ 7t (#T & #9 A R #20,368,000
70 ) R #I500% T (Fra A AREES,0007T) ) °

RZE—+tF+_A=+—H XxEBHR
B EAARM125,763,0007T (= F — /R 4F
+ZH=1+—H: AR%¥196,473,0007T) ' /&
FHaE A ARE299,629,000T ( ZF —KNF
+—-A=+—H: AR¥597,494,0007L) * /%
nEBBEEAARE173,866,0007T (ZF— X
F+=ZA=+—H8: )\Emomozmooomv
MR A042 (ZE—RNF+_A=+—
H:0.33) o ML XBENEFTEEREHRFNR
EEBHEDNPENRIBER UKD 2
/\/Aiiﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁg I

AEENESRRFERBLEETHEED
RERANMBITRBAH AR TF2EE - AEHE
ﬁLE% %ﬁ%ﬁ§$mTMﬁ%ﬁﬁ$
Z81E o R B - Z’KEITJ— )?F_Hﬁﬁkir\/\/m
ﬁ%#ﬂﬂﬁ%w@éiﬁI&L#Fﬁﬁ
HWEVER  ARBEFESERITRARERLT
MEEREFR UWERAEEBERHNRDESR
AmEHEBEEETRRARERTE

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 —Z—+FERE



0

d MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
BEEN WD

Debts

All the debts of the Group are denominated in
Renminbi, Hong Kong Dollars and United States
Dollars. As at 31 December 2017, the Group had
total debts of RMB680,006,000 (31 December
2016: RMB840,526,000), including related
party loans of US$19,700,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB128,724,000) (31 December
2016: US$19,700,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB136,659,000)) and shareholder’s loan of
HK$137,315,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB114,782,000) (31 December 2016:
HK$134,562,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB120,367,000)).

Details of the Group’s debts as at 31 December 2017
and 2016 are as follows:
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AEBR -_ZE—tFR_FT—XR"F+-H
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RMB’000
ARBTR

Secured bank loans BEEBIBTER - 63,000
Unsecured bank loans EMIRITE R - 32,500
Unsecured loans from related parties MK FER 293,724 281,659
Unsecured bank loans guaranteed by R T B IR A

a related party EEBRITER 271,500 343,000
Shareholder’s loan IR E R 114,782 120,367

680,006 840,526
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

The above debts are repayable as follows:

AND ANALYSIS
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2017
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RMB’000
ARBTR

Within 1 year —F A 253,224 534,026
Over 1 year but less than 2 years HmiEm—FEMFEA 87,500 74,500
Over 2 years but less than 5 years HBEMFEALFA 339,282 218,500
Over 5 years i8R F - 13,500

680,006

Among the above debts, approximately
RMB243,506,000 (31 December 2016: approximately
RMB295,026,000) were fixed-rate debts and
denominated in United States Dollar and Hong Kong
Dollar; and the remaining debts were denominated in
Renminbi and subject to adjustment in accordance
with relevant regulations of the People’s Bank of China,
bearing interests calculated at an interest rate of 3.92%
10 4.90% (2016: 3.92% to 4.90%) per annum.

Gearing Ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as
total debt (including all interest-bearing borrowings
and shareholder’s loan, as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position) less cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital is calculated as equity
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company,
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position, plus net debt. As at 31 December 2017,
the Group’s gearing ratio was 53.68% (31 December
2016: 59.80%).
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Details of the capital commitments of the Group as
at 31 December 2017 are set out in note 23(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group pledged certain of
its property, plant and equipment and land use rights
with a net book value of RMB185,448,000 to several
banks as collaterals for bank loans of RMB63,000,000.
As at 31 December 2017, none of the property, plant
and equipment and land use rights was pledged as
collaterals for bank loans.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no material
contingent liability (2016: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

The Group primarily operates its business in Mainland
China and most of the transactions are settled in
Renminbi. Except for certain cash, bank balances
and borrowings that are denominated in Hong Kong
Dollar and United States Dollar, the Group’s assets
and liabilities are mainly denominated in Renminbi.
The Group considers that its current foreign exchange
risk is insignificant and therefore has not hedged it
through any derivatives for the time being. However,
the management of the Group will continue to monitor
its foreign currency exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign exchange risk should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a total
of 257 employees, excluding 3 temporary staff
(31 December 2016: 271, excluding 7 temporary
staff). For the year ended 31 December 2017,
total employees’ remuneration (including directors’
remuneration and benefits) was RMB26,133,000 (2016:
RMB31,047,000). The Group determines employees’
remuneration according to industry practices, financial
performance and employees’ performance. In addition,
the Group provides employees with training and
benefits, such as insurance, medical benefits and
mandatory provident fund contributions, with an aim to
retain talents of all levels for further contribution to the
Group.
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Prospects for 2018

The year of 2018 is the opening year of practising the
spirit of the 19th National Congress of the Communist
Party of China as well as a crucial year for the
implementation of the “13th Five-Year Plan”. To realise
sound results for the energy sector throughout the year
is of great significance in promoting the transformation
and development of energy in the new era, improving
the quality and efficiency of energy development,
enhancing the support capacity and standards for
energy security and fostering sustainable economic and
social development.

Focusing on the clean energy industry, the Group
pays close attention to the energy development
strategy of China and faces with new development and
opportunities. Among which, the following points in the
“Guiding Opinion of the National Energy Administration
for Energy Work in 2018” are particularly worthy of
attention:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

Solidify the base of energy supply

(i) Improve the support capacity for oil and
gas supply
Adhere to the two-way strategy of “activating
existing reserves and accelerating discovery
of new reserves” in strengthening the
exploration and development of conventional
oil and gas resources to ensure basically
stable oil production and relatively fast
growth in natural gas production.

(ii) Speed up the construction of networks
of oil and gas pipelines

Speed up the construction of trunk pipeline
networks, regional branch pipeline networks
and distribution pipeline networks to improve
the distribution of LNG receiving stations and
supporting transmission pipelines.

Being a clean energy supplier that uses
natural gas as a fuel for power generation,
the Group will certainly benefit from the
enhancement of upstream natural gas supply
and support capacity.

Promote the use of natural gas in an
orderly manner

Promote the establishment of natural gas
production, supply, storage and sales systems,
accelerate the increase in reserve and productivity
of domestic natural gas and spare no effort in
promoting the interconnection of natural gas
infrastructure to improve the peak adjusting
system of natural gas reserve; develop distributed
natural gas energy and natural gas peak adjusting
stations in an orderly manner.

All the four natural gas power plants under the
Group are peak adjusting power plants with
mature capabilities and experience in peak
adjusting power plants in terms of specification,
investment, construction and operation. The
Group will pay close attention to new potential
investment opportunities, and will actively explore
the feasibility of developing centralised energy
supply in a distributed form of its power plants
through natural gas power generation.
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Ill. Intensify the reform of power system

Continuously improve the medium and long-term
power trading mechanisms, further promote the
building of an auxiliary power service market,
actively and steadily push forward the building
of trial spot power markets, standardise trading
activities in the power market, accelerate the
reform of the distribution and sale of electricity,
perfect supporting policies for the pilot reform
of incremental distribution network business,
strengthen power market norms and guidance
on the sales side, and increase the proportion
of market-oriented power transactions to further
reduce the energy costs of enterprises.

The Group will respond to the government’s policies by
leveraging on its own expertise to tube an active role
to identify new opportunities for development in the
reform of power system.

At the same time, according to the “73th Five-
Year Plan for Energy Development”, the “13th Five-
Year Plan for Natural Gas Development” and other
guidelines in China, China plans to develop natural
gas as a main energy of the new generation, requiring
the consumption of natural gas as a percentage of
primary energy consumption to increase from 6.3% in
2016 to 8-10% in 2020. As estimated by the Group,
the compound annual growth rate of national natural
gas consumption will reach about 15% over the period
from 2016 to 2020 accordingly. In 2017, the actual
consumption of natural gas in China increased by
15.3%. It is expected that the growth in consumption
will stay at around 15% in next year and the year after.

The Group, being a clean energy supplier focused on
the development of natural gas as a fuel for power
generation, will definitely contribute to the national
goal of developing low-carbon environment amidst the
world’s main stream featuring the wide application of
natural gas.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

According to the “Three-Year Action Plan for the
Development of Natural Gas in Zhejiang Province
(2018-2020)", the plan proposes five priorities in the
field of natural gas in Zhejiang Province for the next
three years: firstly, to promote a natural gas supply
revolution and build a new supply security system;
secondly, to promote a natural gas consumption
revolution and create a clean and efficient situation;
thirdly, to promote a natural gas system revolution
and establish a new mechanism which is fair and
open; fourthly, to promote natural gas technological
innovation and seize new technology development;
fifthly, to strengthen natural gas safety management
and improve the safety standard of pipelines.

After studying the plan, it is found that Zhejiang
Province will continue to vigorously promote the
development of the natural gas industry. The Group will
continue to pay attention to the development of the
sector and to seek new opportunities for development
in this field.

In response to the above situation, the Group has full
confidence in the industry and the future development
of the existing power plants of the Group. The
Group will continue to support and dedicate to the
development of clean energy business and is confident
that it will achieve satisfactory results and become one
of the top clean energy suppliers in China.

In addition, the Group will make unremitting efforts on
the research, development and investment in projects
in relation to gas-fired power generation, as well as the
investigation and research on clean energy projects
other than natural gas with the hope that this can
increase project reserves of the Group for its long-
term sustainable development. At the same time, the
Group will strive to study the potential for expanding its
market share in the clean energy supply in China.

The Group will continue to strengthen its human
resources and focus on the training of talents to build
a team with outstanding members. At the same time,
the Group will continue to implement its comprehensive
budget management and upgrade its ability in plan
execution and budget control in order to further
enhance its management standard and secure stable,
sustainable and healthy development of the Group.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WEI Junyong (“Mr. Wei”), aged 49, was
appointed as a non-executive Director in September
2015 and became the chairman of the Company in
June 2016. He was then appointed as an authorised
representative of the Company in March 2017 and
redesignated as an executive Director in June 2017. Mr.
Wei has also been the director of Amber Bluesky (HK)
Limited, Amber Deneng (HK) Limited, Amber Jingxing
(HK) Limited and Amber Anji (HK) Limited since August
2017.

Mr. Wei graduated from Harbin Engineering University
in 1991 with a bachelor’'s degree in engineering,
majoring in electronic engineering, and from China
Europe International Business School in 2008 with a
master’s degree in management, majoring in business
administration. Mr. Wei has over 20 years of experience
in corporate operations management and has held
various key management positions in Ping An Insurance
(Group) Company of China, Ltd. and its subsidiaries.
Since 2009, Mr. Wei had acted as a director and
the president, an executive committee member,
the financial officer and the chief financial officer of
Minsheng Life Insurance Co., Ltd (“Minsheng Life
Insurance”). Mr. Wei is currently a director of Minsheng
Life Insurance and the president of Shanghai Pu-Xing
Energy Limited (“Puxing Energy”).
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Mr. GU Genyong (“Mr. Gu”), aged 55, was appointed
as an executive Director in June 2017. Mr. Gu joined
the Group in December 2012 and was responsible
for work safety in electric power generation and the
construction management of the Group. He is currently
the general manager of the Company and the chairman
and director of Zhejiang Amber De-Neng Natural Gas
Power Generation Co., Ltd., Hangzhou Amber Blue Sky
Natural Gas Power Generation Co., Ltd., Amber (Aniji)
Gas Turbine Thermal Power Co., Ltd., Zhejiang Amber
Jing-Xing Natural Gas Power Generation Co., Ltd. and
Wenling Juneng Wind Power Generation Co., Ltd.

Mr. Gu has been in the power industry for over 25
years. Mr. Gu graduated from Nanjing Institute of
Technology in 1987, majoring in power plant thermal
energy, and from Southeast University in 1999 with
a master’s degree majoring in system engineering
(corporate management). Mr. Gu is a member of
Jiangsu Society of Engineering Thermophysics. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Gu was the factory manager
of Dilong Thermal Power Plant of Nine Dragons Paper
(Holdings) Limited and an installation expert and
engineer of SINOPEC Jinling Petrochemical Company.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LI Jinquan (“Mr. Li”), aged 49, who acted as
a non-executive Director from March 2013 to June
2015, was appointed as a non-executive Director in
June 2016. Mr. Li graduated from Nanchang Institute
of Aeronautical Technology in 1992 with a bachelor’s
degree in engineering and from Beihang University in
2000 with a master’s degree in engineering. Mr. Li has
over 14 years of experience in corporate operations
management. From 1992 to 2004, Mr. Li acted as a
technician, deputy director of the manufacture and
development department and general manager of
the package material branch of AVIC Qingan Group
Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries and was responsible
for technology research and operation management.
He then worked in the investment management
department of Wanxiang Western Development Co.,
Ltd. from 2004 to 2009 as a senior project manager
and deputy general manager and was responsible
for investment management. From 2009 to 2014,
Mr. Li acted as the vice executive general manager
and executive general manager of the strategic
development department of China Wanxiang Holding
Co., Ltd. Mr. Li is currently a director and chairman of
Hanchuan NCN Machine Tool Co., Ltd.

5

Mr. ZHANG Lianghua (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 55, was
appointed as a non-executive Director in June 2017.
He is currently the vice president of Puxing Energy. Mr.
Zhang graduated from Wuhan University in 2003 with
a doctoral degree in policy and economics. Prior to
joining Puxing Energy, Mr. Zhang was a vice president
of Minsheng Life Insurance and a vice president of
Minsheng Tonghui Asset Management Co., Ltd. Mr.
Zhang also held various positions in the Life Insurance
Regulatory Department of China Insurance Regulatory
Commission, including deputy director and head of
Actuary Section.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. TSE Chi Man (“Mr. Tse”), aged 64, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in May 2009. Mr. Tse holds a bachelor’'s degree
and a master’'s degree in business administration
from the University of Texas, Arlington. Mr. Tse has
over 20 years of experience in finance and business
development management. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Tse held various positions in a number
of organisations, including as a director of Chase
Manhattan Asia Limited, a mergers and acquisitions
director of Inchcape Pacific Limited, an executive
director of Lerado Group (Holding) Company Limited
and a managing director of Dresdner Kleinwort Benson
(China) Limited. Mr. Tse worked at Imagi International
Holdings Limited, a company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, from 1999 to 2008
and was appointed as a director in 2004, and as the
chief financial officer in 2007 who was responsible for
overseeing the company’s accounting and finance,
administration and human resources functions. Mr. Tse
was also a member of the Design Institute Advisory
Board of Vocational Training Council.
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Mr. YAO Xianguo (“Mr. Yao”), aged 65, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in May 2009. Mr. Yao holds a master’'s degree in
economics from Fudan University. He is currently a
professor at the School of Public Affairs, Zhejiang
University, a member of The Expect Evaluation
Committee of National Social Science Foundation
of China, an executive vice-chairman of the China
Industrial Economic Association and a member of the
Zhejiang Government Advisory Council. Mr. Yao is
also an independent non-executive director of Hithink
RoyalFlush Information Network Co., Ltd. and Zhejiang
Zheneng Electric Power Co., Ltd., which are companies
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr. Yao was an
independent non-executive director of Zhejiang Asia-
Pacific Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., a company listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, from December
2013 to May 2017 and an independent non-executive
director of Wolong Electric Group Co., Ltd., a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, from January
2012 to January 2018.

Mr. YU Wayne W. (“Mr. Yu”), aged 54, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in August 2012. Mr. Yu holds a Bachelor of Business
Administration degree, a Master of Arts (Economics)
degree and a Ph.D. (Finance) degree. Mr. Yu is
a Chartered Financial Analyst and is currently a
professor of City University of Hong Kong. Before
joining City University of Hong Kong, Mr. Yu was a
professor of Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
an assistant professor of the School of Business at
Queen’s University in Canada. Mr. Yu has also been an
independent non-executive director of Zhejiang Haers
Vacuum Containers Co., Ltd., a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, since September 2017.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The senior management of the Group comprises the
executive Directors above, namely, Mr. Wei Junyong
and Mr. Gu Genyong, and the secretary of the
Company, namely, Mr. Lai Chi Fung. The biographical
details of the senior management are set out under
the heading “Executive Directors” above and in below
respectively:

Mr. LAl Chi Fung (“Mr. Lai”), aged 37, was
appointed as the company secretary and an authorised
representative of the Company in July 2017. Mr. Lai
holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree
with honours in Accounting. He is a member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has
over 13 years of experience in auditing, accounting,
financial management and company secretarial
practice.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

The directors (the “Directors”) of Amber Energy Limited
(the “Company”) have the pleasure in submitting their
report together with the audited financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holdings and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
the development, operation and management of power
plants fueled by natural gas in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”). Details of the activities and other
particulars of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the
year and a discussion on the Group’s future business
development are set out in the Chairman’s Statement
as well as the Management Discussion and Analysis on
pages 6 to 8 and pages 9 to 27 of this annual report.
An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators is provided
in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages
9 to 27 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Company is one of the earliest enterprises entering
the natural gas power generation field in the PRC
and is aware of its responsibility for environmental
protection. The Group, which commits to sustainable
development of the environment and our society,
has continuously input resources and implement the
emission management policy of all kinds of pollutant
as well as other environmental protection management
standards to reduce the impact of its business
operation on the environment.

For further information about the environmental policies
and performance of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2017, please refer to the environmental,
social and governance report to be issued on or before
27 July 2018.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As an entity incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
listed in Hong Kong, the Company is mainly governed
by the Companies Law (2016 revision) of the Cayman
Islands, the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571), the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
on the corporate level. The Board has adopted the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, and each of its
committee has its own term of reference defining their
respective rights, duties and obligation.

On operation level, the Group conducted its businesses
in accordance with, among others, the Electric Power
Law of the People’s Republic of China and all other
relevant laws and regulations in the PRC in relation
to the electric power industry, energy conservation,
environmental protection and safety production. In
addition, all business units of the Group have acted in
compliance with the local labour laws and regulations.

During the year, to the best of the Directors’
knowledge, there is no material breach of or non-
compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the
Group which has a significant impact on its business
and operations.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with its employees, customers,
suppliers, governments and business associates to
fulfil its long-term goals and development. To enhance
its competitiveness, the Group aims at delivering high
quality services to its customers constantly. During
the year, there was no material or significant dispute
between the Group and its stakeholders.
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For further information about the Company’s key
relationships with its employees, customers and
suppliers for the year ended 31 December 2017,
please refer to the environmental, social and
governance report to be issued on or before 27 July
2018.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Risks and uncertainties involved in the business
operations of the Group may affect the Group’s
financial conditions or growth prospects. The Group
has been focusing on the control of risks and
uncertainties with the aim of understanding and
addressing the concerns of stakeholders. Key risks and
uncertainties faced by the Group are listed below:

Risk relating to price fluctuation and supplies of
natural gas

The business of the Group relies exclusively on
natural gas as fuel source which is currently provided
by the only supplier, Zhejiang Province Natural Gas
Development Company. If there is a shortage or
interruption in the supply of natural gas in Zhejiang
province, the business of the Group may be materially
and adversely affected. In addition, cost of natural gas
represented a significant proportion of the operating
expenses of the Group. As the gas prices applicable
to the Group are determined by the local provincial
price bureau in the PRC, increase in natural gas costs
will increase the operating cost of the Group and may
adversely affect its profitability. If in the future, the
government authorities decide to increase the prices of
natural gas, but not the on-grid tariffs, or the on-grid
tariffs are not adjusted accordingly on a timely manner,
or the rate of increase in on-grid tariffs is less than the
rate of increase in the prices of natural gas, the Group
will not be able to pass on the increased costs to its
customers, and may adversely affect its profitability.

The Group will actively conduct market analysis on the
price movement, expand channels for procuring fuels,
optimize structures of gas sources and, if practicable,
execute reasonable control on procurement cost.
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Risk relating to changes in policies in relation
to electricity retail market

With further reform of the national electricity system
in the PRC, Zhejiang province is already one of the
pilot sites for electricity system reform. The change of
electricity retail market policies created opportunities
for the Group to expand and diversify its customer
base. However, the operations of the Group may also
be affected by entering the electricity retail market,
such as increased complexity of the business mode,
market fluctuation of exchange tariffs and other
factors. The Group will actively follow policy guidance,
intensify the research of state policies, and take various
measures to assess the risks and benefits that may
affect the Group by changes in the electricity market.

Risk relating to change in PRC government
policies to electric power industry

The PRC government is currently implementing policies
that are favorable to the business of the Group and
providing various incentives to the Group which may
no longer be available or become less favorable in the
future. If the current favorable government policies and
incentives are reduced or are no longer available in the
future, the financial results of the Group in the future
may be adversely affected.
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Risk relating to current liabilities position of the
Group

The Group had net current liabilities position since the
financial year ended 31 December 2012, which was
principally due to utilization of short-term bank loans
and other borrowings for financing the Group’s capital
expenditure. The Group continuously seeks to convert
its short-term borrowings to long-term borrowings
to improve its net current liabilities position or settle
the short-term bank loans and other borrowings with
long-term loans. There can be no assurance that
the Group will always be able to raise the necessary
finance by borrowing from banks and other financial
institutions to finance its business, operations and
capital expenditure. In recent years, the intermediate
holding company of the Company, Shanghai Pu-Xing
Energy Limited (“Puxing Energy”), continuously provide
financial supports to the Group for its operations.
In the event that the existing banking and credit
facilities do not continue to extend with similar or more
favorable facilities to the Group and the Group fails
to obtain alternative banking and credit facilities on
reasonable terms or Puxing Energy discontinues its
financial support, the Group’s business and financial
position may be adversely affected. The Group may be
required to issue additional equity or debt securities
which could result in dilution to the equity interest of
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”),
and the incurrence of additional indebtedness would
result in increased fixed obligations and could result in
operating covenants that restricts its operation.

Risk relating to financial instruments

The Group is exposed to certain market risks such as
interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and currency
risk. Details of these risks are set out in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The risk factors as mentioned above are not exhaustive
or comprehensive, and there may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to thereto which are not known
to the Group or which may not be material at this
moment but could turn out to be material in the future.
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RESULTS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December
2017 and the Group’s financial position as at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on
page 81 to 84 of this annual report.

RECOMMENDED DIVIDEND

The board of Directors (the “Board”) recommends
the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.03 (2016:
HK$0.03) per share for the year ended 31 December
2017. The proposed final dividend, if approved by
the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company, is expected to be paid on
or around 27 June 2018 to the Shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members on Thursday,
14 June 2018.

The Board reminds the Shareholders that the
Company’s dividend policy enunciated at the time
of our initial public offering in 2009 is that it will pay
approximately 20%-30% of the net profit attributable
to the Shareholders as dividend. Despite that the
proposed dividend for the year is slightly higher than
the dividend policy of the Company, the Board reminds
the Shareholders that the Board has no present
intention to change the policy. However, the payment
and amount of any dividends in the future will be at
the discretion of the Board and will depend upon
the Company’s earnings, financial conditions, cash
requirements and availability, and other factors. There
iS no assurance the amount of dividend payment or
the timing of such payment, or whether the dividend
distribution will occur as intended.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company will
be held on Friday, 8 June 2018 (the “‘AGM”). A
notice convening the AGM has been issued to the
Shareholders together with this annual report, which is
also available on the website of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) at
www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s website at
www.amberenergy.com.hk.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
in the following periods during which day no transfer of
shares of the Company will be registered:

()  from Tuesday, 5 June 2018 to Friday, 8 June
2018 (both days inclusive), for the purpose of
determining Shareholders’ entitlement to attend
and vote at the annual general meeting. In
order to be eligible to attend and to vote at the
annual general meeting, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, 4 June 2018; and

(i) on Thursday, 14 June 2018, for the purpose of
determining Shareholders’ entitlement to the
proposed final dividend, during which period no
transfers of shares will be registered. In order
to be qualified for the proposed final dividend,
all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Wednesday, 13 June 2018.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on page 188 of this annual report.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of
the Cayman lIslands, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company, nor any of
its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s securities listed on the Stock
Exchange.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in the property, plant and
equipment and lease prepayments of the Group
during the year are set out in note 12 and 13 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

Change in accounting estimates

The Group has determined to change the depreciation
method for certain of its property, plant and equipment,
mainly major generator equipment, from “unit-of-
production” method to “straight-line” method effective
from 1 January 2017. Details of the change are set out
in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARES ISSUED

Details of the shares issued by the Company during
the year are set out in note 21(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group during the year are set out in note 21(a)
to the consolidated financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of change in equity on page 85
of this annual report respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the Company had no
retained profits available for distribution. Pursuant to
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium of the Company can be applied for payment
of distributions or dividends to the Shareholders
provided that immediately following the date on which
the distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid,
the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business. Accordingly, based
on the future projection of the Group’s profit and cash
inflows from operations and the anticipated ability of
the Group to obtain continued bank loans and financial
support from its intermediate parent company, the
Directors determined that the distributable reserves of
the Company (including share premium, contributed
surplus and accumulated losses of the Company) as
at 31 December 2017 was RMB243,228,000 (2016:
RMB267,908,000).

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Company and the
Group as at 31 December 2017 are set out in note 17
and 18 to the consolidated financial statements.
DONATIONS

There was no donation made by the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation
available to Shareholders by reason of their holding of
the shares of the Company.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

There was no equity-linked agreement entered into by
the Company during the year.
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, convertible
bonds issued by the Company to Amber International
Investment Co., Ltd. (“Amber International”), the
immediate holding company of the Company, on
29 November 2011 in the principal amount of
HK$124,800,000 (the “Convertible Bonds”) were
matured on 29 November 2016 (the “Maturity Date”).
On the Maturity Date, neither Amber International
exercised any conversion options attached thereto nor
the Company made any redemption to the Convertible
Bonds. In connection with the expiry of the Convertible
Bonds, Amber International gave a confirmation to
the Company and agreed to waive all its rights (if
any), whether contractual or otherwise, to bring any
claim and/or commence any proceedings against
the Company for any remedies and/or reliefs for any
breach of the conditions committed by the Company.
In addition, Amber International also confirmed that
the outstanding principal and interest payable of the
Convertible Bonds on the Maturity Date are payable on
demand and bearing an interest rate at 2% per annum,
unless agreed otherwise thereafter. On 31 December
2017, the Company and Amber International entered
into an agreement to restructure the outstanding
principal and interest payable of the Convertible Bonds
into a 5-year term loan, which bearing an interest rate
at 4.9% per annum. Details of the Convertible Bonds
are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company does not have any share option scheme
as at 31 December 2017 and up to the date of this
annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2017, 97.76% and
99.97% of the Group’s revenue were attributable to the
to the largest customer and the five largest customers
of the Group, respectively.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

BHE - ZTZ—XRNEF+-_A=+—BILEE &K
RARZE——F+—AZt+hBmMEEE
ERARIFIAEBRKREER AR ([FRARA
BR ) B 1THY R4 §8124,800,00058 JT By 7] 82 8
BH([AIERES]DER_Z—<F+—A
—+AB(TEHB )3 - NBEE - IRIAK
PRV AT ] EIRE S SR e B
N B) PR BB O] (T ) ] B IR (E 55 o L] e (E
HFEEME  REBERARREHER KRR
EREEFMEBESN(BE) (TwmAETHxE
) - A AR BE R 0] A& R R I
MARRRBERBRERIRBEEER
FFABSEA#ERE SKER- 1t 3R
BRniER  EBRESNEBANREERS
REMFIBEFENREREEERE  WIRFFE2%
AR BRIEESEHBE- R=Z2T—tF+=
A=+—8B ARRRIFABRBRET L A
BrEBRESNREERAE REMFEE
HARTFEHE  WIRFMNELI%TE A
BREFNFBHRLRE M BERERM 17 -

BT E

RZE—+FE+_A=1+—"HEREELRER
Szl RN/ ik SRR G D

TEEFPREER

BE-_T—+H5+-A=1t—HILFE K&
B U 25 8997.76% 2 99.97% 7 Bl 3k B 7N & E &
ABEERAEKREP-

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 —Z—+FERE



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

The Group had only one natural gas supplier during the
year. All purchase (not including purchases of capital
nature) for the year ended 31 December 2017 were
attributable to this supplier.

At no time during the year have the Directors, their
associates or any shareholders of the Company, who
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5%
of the issued share capital of the Company, had any
interest in these major customers and supplier.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. WEI Junyong (Chairman)

Mr. CHAI Wei (resigned on 2 June 2017)
Mr. GU Genyong (appointed on 8 June 2017)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. LI Jinquan
Mr. LIU Xuanhua (resigned on 2 June 2017)
Mr. ZHANG Lianghua (appointed on 8 June 2017)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. TSE Chi Man
Mr. YAO Xianguo
Mr. YU Wayne W.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules from each of the independent non-executive
Directors and considers them to be independent.
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CHANGES OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the
changes in the information of Directors required to
be disclosed pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g)
of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules subsequent to
the publication of the 2017 interim report are set out
below:

() Mr. Yu Wayne W. was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Zhejiang
Haers Vacuum Containers Co., Ltd., a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, in
September 2017;

(i) Mr. Yao Xianguo ceased to be an independent
non-executive director of Wolong Electric Group
Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange, in January 2018; and

(i) Commencing 1 February 2018, Mr. Gu
Genyong was entitled to receive remuneration
of approximately RMB39,000 per month with
discretionary bonus.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 28 to
33 of this annual report.

RETIREMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

In accordance with Article 83(3) of the Company’s
Articles of Association, Mr. Gu Genyong and Mr. Zhang
Lianghua will retire at the AGM and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Article 84(1) of the Company’s
Articles of Association, Mr. Wei Junyong, Mr. Li Jinquan
and Mr. Yao Xianguo will retire by rotation at the AGM
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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RESIGNATION OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Chai Wei (“Mr. Chai”) would like to devote
more time for his personal affairs and resigned as
the president and authorised representative of the
Company on 31 March 2017. Mr. Chai then elected not
to stand for re-election to his office at the 2017 annual
general meeting and resigned as an executive Director
after the conclusion of the 2017 annual general meeting
held on 2 June 2017. Mr. Chai has confirmed that he
had no disagreement with the Board and there was
no matter relating to his retirement that needs to be
brought to the attention of the Shareholders.

Mr. Liu Xuanhua (“Mr. Liu”) elected not to stand for
re-election to his office at the 2017 annual general
meeting and resigned as a non-executive Director after
the conclusion of the 2017 annual general meeting held
on 2 June 2017. Mr. Liu has confirmed that he had no
disagreement with the Board and there was no matter
relating to his retirement that needs to be brought to
the attention of the Shareholders.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, its holding companies or a subsidiary
of its holding companies a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

During the year, the Group has carried out significant
transactions with its holding companies and a
subsidiary of its holding company as detailed in note
24(a) to the consolidated financial statements. Save for
as disclosed above, no other transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, its holding companies or a
subsidiary of its holding companies was a party or were
parties and in which a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of
the Directors was interested in any business, which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM
has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries that is not determinable by the
employing company within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ remuneration is reviewed by the
remuneration committee of the Board at least once
per year with reference to the Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and results of the
Group. Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set
out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

During the year, the five individuals with the highest
emoluments in the Group comprises two Directors
and three individuals, which included the senior
management of the Company. Details of the highest
paid individuals are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section
467 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the
benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in
force throughout the financial year ended 31 December
2017. In addition, the Company has taken out and kept
in force appropriate directors’ and officers’ liabilities
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Company.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2017, to the knowledge of the
Company, none of the Directors or chief executive
of the Company or any of their spouses or children
under 18 years old had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) (Cap. 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong)) which were required to be: (i) notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which the Directors and
chief executive of the Company were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO); (ii) entered
in the register kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO; or (iii) notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of
the Company, as at 31 December 2017, the following
persons (other than a Director or a chief executive of
the Company) had, or were taken or deemed to have
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which are required to be
disclosed to the Company under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of the SFO:
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Amber International Investment Co.,
Ltd. (“Amber International”)

RN IZE BR A A
(MZEAEFE])

Shanghai Pu-Xing Energy
Limited (“Puxing Energy”) (te 2
%2 RN A
([ EB4E]|) M2

China Wanxiang Holding Co.,
Ltd. (“China Wanxiang”) (ot 2
FEEMZERARA A
(& mEAk]) W=

Minsheng Life Insurance Co., Ltd.
(“Minsheng Life Insurance”) (ot 2

REASRERNBRAG
(TREASBRR]) W82

Mr. Lu Weiding (“Mr. Lu”) (ete2
BEKLE ([BRE]) W

Ms. Li Lj (e ®
2 B8 A7+ (Hi0)

BC Greater China Opportunities
Fund SPC, acting on behalf of
and for account of BC New
Energy Fund SP (a segregated
Portfolio thereof)

RERPERBES (RKREA
BC New Energy Fund SP
(RERPERBESZ
BUEEMEB)TE)

BC Asset Management Limited (te 4

BC Asset Management Limited ("#4)
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EEEWE

Beneficial interest
EmiEs

Interests in a controlled
__corporation
XA EER

Interests in a controlled
corporation
X EEER

Interests in a controlled
corporation
X EE R

Interests in a controlled
corporation
XEEE RS

Interest of spouse

SRR e

Beneficial interest
EmiEn

Interests in a controlled
corporation
XEEE S

300,000,000 (L)

300,000,000 (L)

300,000,000 (L)

300,000,000 (L)

300,000,000 (L)

300,000,000 (L)

40,000,000 (L)

40,000,000 (L)
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Notes:

M

The letter “L” denotes the entity/person’s long position in the
shares.
These shares are held by Amber International, which is owned as

to 100% by Puxing Energy, which is owned as to 57.14% by China
Wanxiang which in turn is, inter alia, 75% owned by Mr. Lu and
16.67% by E/BERZHFRAF (Shanghai Guandingze Co., Ltd.),
a company owned as to 86.67% by Mr. Lu. The remaining 42.86%
of Puxing Energy is owned by Minsheng Life Insurance, which is
owned as to 37.32% by China Wanxiang. Therefore, Puxing Energy,
China Wanxiang, Minsheng Life Insurance and Mr. Lu are deemed to
be interested in the shares held by Amber International.

Ms. Li Li is the spouse of Mr. Lu and is therefore deemed to be
interested in the said shares in which Mr. Lu is deemed to be
interested.

These shares are held by BC Greater China Opportunities Fund
SPC, acting on behalf of and for account of BC New Energy Fund
SP (a segregated portfolio thereof) which is owned as to 100% by
BC Asset Management Limited.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been
notified by any other persons (other than Directors or
chief executives of the Company) who had interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company which are required to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and

3 of

Part XV of the SFO, or which were entered in the

register kept by the Company pursuant to section 336
of the SFO as at 31 December 2017.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED
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TRANSACTIONS DISCLOSED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE RULES
GOVERNING THE LISTING OF SECURITIES
ON THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in
the normal course of business are provided under note
24(a) to the consolidated financial statements, and
none of which constitutes a discloseable connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction as
defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available
to the Company and within the knowledge of the
Directors, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float as required under the Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31 December 2017 and up
to the date of this annual report.

REVIEW OF ANNUAL RESULTS

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed
the annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant event of the Group after
the reporting period are set out in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITORS

KPMG retired and, being eligible, offered themselves for
reappointment. A resolution for the reappointment of
KPMG as auditors of the Company is to be proposed at
the AGM. There has been no change in auditors of the
Company in any of the preceding three years.

By order of the Board

WEI Junyong
Chairman

27 March 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board has been adamant in upholding high
standards of corporate governance to maximize
operational efficiency, corporate values and shareholder
returns. The Company has adopted and applied the
principals of the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Company will
continue to upgrade internal control system, strengthen
risk control management and reinforce the corporate
governance structure.

The Company has complied with the code provisions
and, where appropriate, the applicable recommended
best practices set out in the CG Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2017.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.

The Company has made specific enquiry to all
Directors regarding the compliance with the Model
Code. All Directors confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

During the year and up to the date of this report, the
Board comprises:

Executive Directors

Mr. WEI Junyong (Chairman)
Mr. CHAI Wei (resigned on 2 June 2017)
Mr. GU Genyong (appointed on 8 June 2017)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. LI Jinquan
Mr. LIU Xuanhua (resigned on 2 June 2017)
Mr. ZHANG Lianghua (appointed on 8 June 2017)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)
Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. TSE Chi Man
Mr. YAO Xianguo
Mr. YU Wayne W.

The Board’s composition demonstrates a balance
of core competence with regard to the business of
the Group so as to provide effective leadership and
the requisite expertise to the Group. The executive
Directors and senior management of the Company
have extensive management experience in the
Company’s business.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out in the
section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” on page 28 to 33 of this annual report,
which demonstrate a diversity of skills, expertise,
experience and qualifications.

Board Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for leadership and control
of the Group, is entrusted with the responsibility to
supervise the overall management of the business,
including establishing and overseeing the Group’s
strategic development, business plans’ financial
objectives, capital investment proposals, and assumes
the responsibilities of corporate governance of the
Group. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for implementing its business strategies
and managing the daily operations of the Group’s
business to the executive Directors and members of
senior management.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Chairman and Chief Executive

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles
of chairman and chief executive should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual.
The chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) and the
chief executive of the Company are currently two
separate positions. Mr. Wei Junyong is the Chairman
and Mr. Gu Genyong is the general manager of
the Company, who was appointed subsequent to
the resignation of Mr. Chai Wei as president of the
Company with effect from 31 March 2017.

Board Meetings

The Board meets approximately quarterly and on other
occasions when warranted by circumstances. During
the year, the Board held ten meetings. Notice for
regular Board meetings are given to each Director at
least fourteen days prior to the meeting whereby the
Directors can put forward their proposed items into the
agenda. The agenda and the relevant Board papers
are then circulated to the Directors three days before
the Board meeting in order to enable the Directors to
make informed decisions. For other Board meetings,
reasonable notices are given.

In addition to regular Board meetings, under code
provision A.2.7 of the Listing Rules, the Chairman
should at least annually hold meetings with the non-
executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) without the executive Directors
present (the “Chairman and Non-executive Directors
Meeting”). During the year, one Chairman and Non-
executive Directors Meeting was held.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Number of meetings and Director’s attendance

Details of the Directors’ attendance at the Company’s
general meeting and the meetings of the Board, the
audit committee, the remuneration committee, the
nomination committee and the Chairman and Non-
executive Directors Meeting held during the year are set
out below:

BEEg(#8)
ERABREFEHERER

EEHFFRNETNRDARAAGARE
Fe ENEES FMEEGRREAZER
CHREEERFAGESSROIBEN
m -

Executive Directors

BITER

Mr. WEI Junyong 11 9/10
BOBELLE

Mr. CHAI Wei® 0/1 1/3
EEREN

Mr. Gu Genyong® N/A 3/3
BRKEAED TEm

Non-executive Directors

EHTES

Mr. LI Jinquan 11 2/10
X

Mr. LIU Xuanhua® 01 0/3
EEEEY

Mr. ZHANG Lianghua® N/A 3/3
RREFEY A

Independent non-executive Directors

BUkRITES

Mr. TSE Chi Man 11 10/10
HEXEE

Mr. YAO Xianguo 11 10/10
Bl £

Mr. Yu Wayne W. 11 10/10
aEELE
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Note:

(1) Mr. Chai Wei resigned as an executive Director with effect from 2
June 2017 after the conclusion of the annual general meeting held
on 2 June 2017.

(2) Mr. Gu Genyong was appointed as an executive Director with effect
from 8 June 2017.

(3) Mr. Liu Xianhua resigned as a non-executive Director with effect
from 2 June 2017 after the conclusion of the annual general
meeting held on 2 June 2017.

(4) Mr. Zhang Lianghua was appointed as a non-executive Director with

effect from 8 June 2017.

Relationship amongst Directors

There are no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships amongst Board
members and in particular, between the Chairman and
the chief executive.

Non-executive Directors

The term of appointment of all the non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) are three years. Pursuant to the Company’s
Articles of Association, one-third of the Directors
(including non-executive Directors) are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting at least once every three years.

Independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors

In determining the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors, the Board follows the
guidelines as set out in the Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company has received annual confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Tse Chi Man, Mr. Yao
Xianguo and Mr. Yu Wayne W. and concluded that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Continuous Professional Development of
Directors

Upon appointment to the Board, each new Director
receives a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction
package to ensure that he understands the business
and operations of the Group and is sufficiently aware of
his responsibility and obligation under the Listing Rules
and relevant regulatory requirements.

The Directors are kept informed on the developments
of the statutory and regulatory regime, and the changes
in the business markets so as to facilitate them to fulfil
their responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant statutory requirements. Continuing
briefings and professional development for Directors
will be arranged by the Company when considered
necessary.

During the year, the Company has coordinated training
courses for the Directors in accordance with the Listing
Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. According
to the records provided by the Directors, the Directors
participated in the following continuous professional
development (“CPD”) during the year:

BEg(#8)
EENHEEERER

REZEMAEZSR SFTEFEEXE
-~ IEA N AR AR I - DARE R H B AR AN
SEXRGREERFTIHAD LHARA KA
EEREBEREBAEZEENES-

EERRETEZENEENERERARER
mISEE  UEERE EHRANBRETR
EREITRE -2 ARAERRR/LER D
BEERYREBBRIERER-

FRARFERELTRAMEBEEERTE
REERHBIIRE REEFRHENCE
EERFR2ENTHESXER ([HEF
EER]):

Mr. WEI Junyong BHBXAE
Mr. GU Genyong BEAR K T A&
Mr. LI Jinquan T REE
Mr. ZHANG Lianghua RRELSE
Mr. TSZ Chi Man i 75 XS A
Mr. YAO Xianguo ok 5 B % A
Mr. YU Wayne. W MEEEE
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BOARD COMMITTEES
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Audit Committee
BIZEES

The Board established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) and a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) in June 2009, and a
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
in April 2012 (collectively, the “Board Committees”).
The term of reference of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee are posted on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. Members of the Board
Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
fulfil their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able
to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

Audit Committee

The current members of the Audit Committee are:

Mr. TSE Chi Man (Chairman)
Mr. YAO Xianguo
Mr. YU Wayne W.

All members of the Audit Committee are independent
non-executive Directors who possess sufficient
accounting and financial management expertise and
experience to fulfil their duties.

Remuneration Committee

FHZES

Nomination Committee
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee serves as a focal point of
communication between the Directors, the external
auditors and the internal auditors with regards to their
duties relating to financial and other reporting, internal
controls, external and internal audits and assisting
the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities by providing
independent review and supervision of financial
reporting, by satisfying itself as to the effectiveness
of the internal controls of the Group, and as to the
adequacy of the external and internal audits.

During the year, two Audit Committee meetings were
held, inter alia, to review the 2016 annual results and
the 2017 interim results of the Group. The attendance
records are set out under the section headed “Number
of meetings and Directors’ attendance” in this report.

Remuneration Committee

The current members of the Remuneration Committee
are:

Mr. YAO Xianguo (Chairman)
Mr. TSE Chi Man
Mr. WEI Junyong

The Remuneration Committee is currently made up
of two independent non-executive Directors and one
executive Director, and is chaired by an independent
non-executive Director.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board
in relation to the remuneration packages and benefits
of the Directors and the senior management of the
Company to ensure the relevant individuals are fairly
rewarded in light of their contribution to the Company
with reference to their performance, and that they
receive suitable incentives to maintain high standards
of performance and to improve the Group’s and their
own performance. In connection with the review of the
remuneration package, no Director shall be involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

During the year, one Remuneration Committee
meeting was held, inter alias, to review the Company’s
remuneration policies, remuneration structure and
remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management of the Company. The attendance records
are set out under the section headed “Number of
meetings and Directors’ attendance” in this report.

Remuneration paid to senior management

Remuneration paid to senior management of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2017 by
band are as follows:
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee

The current members of the Nomination Committee
are:

Mr. WEI Junyong (Chairman)
Mr. YAO Xianguo
Mr. YU Wayne W.

The Nomination Committee is currently made up of two
independent non-executive Directors and one executive
Director, and is chaired by the Chairman.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible
for, amongst other things, (i) reviewing the Board’s
diversity policy and the measurable objectives set by
the Board for implementing the Board’s diversity policy
annually, and making recommendations to the Board
on any proposed changes to the Board according
to the Company’s corporate strategy; (i) making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors; (iii) identifying individuals suitable
to be qualified as Board members; (iv) assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors
annually; and (v) deciding whether or not a Director is
able to and has adequately carried out his duties as a
Director.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Board has adopted a Board diversity policy
setting out the approach to the diversification of Board
members since 2013. The Company recognises and
embraces the benefits of diversity of Board members.
It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirement of the Company’s
business. All Board appointment will continue to
be made on a merit basis with due regards for the
benefits of diversity of the Board members. Selection
of candidates will be based on a range of perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), skills and knowledge. The ultimate decision
will be made upon the merits and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

For the selection and nomination of new Directors
during the year, the Nomination Committee had carried
out a selection process by making reference to the
skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal
integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, the Company’s needs and other relevant
statutory and regulatory requirements, and had
selected and made recommendations to the Board on
the appropriate candidates for directorship.

During the year, two Nomination Committee meetings
were held, inter alias, to review the structure, size,
composition and diversity of the Board and to consider,
nominate and recommend the appointment and re-
appointment of Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board has carried out its duties and responsibilities
as set out in D.3 of the CG Code including (i) the
development of policies and practices on corporate
governance; (i) monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management of the Company; (iii) reviewing and
monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the code of conduct applicable to the employees of
the Company and the Directors; and (iv) reviewing
compliance of the Company with the CG Code and the
disclosure in this report.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility in
preparing the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and that of the results and cash flows in
the relevant financial year. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017,
the Directors have selected appropriate accounting
policies, applied them consistently in accordance with
appropriate International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards and the related
interpretations, and made adjustments and estimates
are prudent and reasonable.

During the year, the Directors has reviewed the
depreciation for certain of the property, plant and
equipment of the Group and decided to change the
depreciation method for certain of its property, plant
and equipment, mainly major generator equipment,
from “unit-of-production” method to “straight-line”
method with effect from 1 January 2017. Details of
the change are set out in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continuea)

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements (Continued)

In addition, as at 31 December 2017, the Group’s
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
RMB173,866,000. The Directors have reviewed the
future projection of the Group’s profit and cash inflows
from operations and the anticipated ability of the Group
to obtain continued bank loans and financial support
from an intermediate parent company, Shanghai
Pu-Xing Energy Limited, to finance its continuing
operations for the year ending 31 December 2018,
and believe that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future and there are no material uncertainties related
to the events or conditions which, individually or
collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors to the
Shareholders are set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on page 69 to 80 of
this annual report.

Auditors’ Remuneration

During the year, the Company’s auditor, KPMG,
provided to the Company its audit services in relation
to the review of interim financial report and audit of
annual financial statements. The audit fee paid/payable
to KPMG in respect of the audit services provided was
approximately RMB1,100,000. There was no non-audit
service provided by KPMG during the year.

DEEARE

EEVELACY
EERMBBROEE ()

o R—ZF—ttF+_A=+t—HB &
SENRBDEBERARHEEBHARY
173,866,0007T ° & % B 2 [ 7 & E #) R s
MERERSRATRR AN FEHAREE [ H
EEAREERERNDAREBSERHERITE
AEMELENREBE_T—\F+ A
=T -HIEFEFELERTEESHEN I
BMEASBERERRER AN A B RKR
BREEEBEY BRI ER AR
AEBERFBELLERNBREARB ZEMK
BRZEATHAARE - At BHRKRTIIZ
FEREE LRS-

SNEZBEHBRRNE TR A FRFECOE
80E [BIM BB RS — £

4% 25 6 7 BN

FRN ARRAZBMESHSHMEHMER
ERTHMBREREZFEMBRRMAA
NEREBXRS - ATiRRERREEN
R TESHSTMEEMNZBREANA
AR ¥1,100,0007C » 2 F B AN BB TR F
R 4 SR A FE R AZ RS o

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 —Z—+FERE



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERRE

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lai Chi Fung (“Mr. Lai”) is an employee of the
Company and was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 21 July 2017 following
the resignation of Mr. Lai Chun Yu on 5 June 2017. The
biography of Mr. Lai is set out in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” of
this annual report. Mr. Lai has taken no less than 15
hours of the relevant professional training requirement
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules for the year ended
31 December 2017.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Group recognises Shareholder’s rights in exercising
control proportionate to their equity ownership. As one
of the measures to safeguard Shareholders’ interest
and rights, separate resolutions are proposed at the
Shareholder’s meetings on each substantial issue,
including the election of Director(s), for Shareholder’s
consideration and voting. All resolutions put forward
at Shareholders’ meeting will be voted by way of poll,
which is conducted and scrutinised by the Company’s
share registrar. Poll results are announced and posted
on the website of both the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association
of the Company, Shareholder(s) holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written request to the
Board or the secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specify in such
request; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the submission of such request. If within
twenty-one days of such submission the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, Shareholder(s) may
do so in the same manner.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Procedures for directing Shareholders’
enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to
the Board in writing to the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong or by email for the
attention of the secretary of the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director

Pursuant to Article 85 of the Articles of Association
of the Company, no person other than a Director
retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by
the Directors for election, be eligible for election as a
Director at any general meeting unless a written notice
signed by a Shareholder (other than the person to
be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his intention
to propose such person for election and also a written
notice signed by the person to be proposed of his
willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
head office of the Company or at the share registrar
of the Company provided that the minimum length
of the period, during which such written notice(s)
are given, shall be at least seven days and that (if
the written notices are submitted after the despatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election) the period for lodgment of such written
notice(s) shall commence on the day after the despatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election and end no later than seven days prior
to the date of such general meeting. Accordingly, if a
Shareholder duly qualified to attend and vote at the
general meeting of the Company wishes to propose
a person for election as a Director at the general
meeting, he/she can deposit a signed written notice
of the intention to propose a person for election as a
Director and a signed written notice by that person
of his/her willingness to be elected together with his/
her particulars (such as qualification and experience)
and information as required to be disclosed under Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules at the head office of the
Company at Tower Il, No.32 Lingyin Road, Xihu District,
Hangzhou 310007, Zhejiang Province, PRC or at the
share registrar of the Company, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong. The period for lodgment of the
notices required will commence no earlier than the day
after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than
seven days prior to the date of such general meeting,
and the minimum length of the period during which
such notices to the Company may be given will be at
least seven days.
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TRERRE

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The up-to-date consolidated version of the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company (in both English and Chinese) is available
on both the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. There is no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the year.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has an overall responsibility for maintaining
a sound and effective system of risk management and
internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness,
particularly in respect of the controls of financial,
operational, compliance and risk management, to
safeguard Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s
assets. The Board should ensure that review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems has been conducted at least
annually.

The Group maintains its internal audit function with
the assistance of the Audit Committee and the
management of the Company. During the year, the
Board has conducted a review on the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control system of
the Group with the assistance of the Audit Committee
and the management of the Company. The Board is
satisfied that, based on the information provided and
on its own observation, the present risk management
and internal control systems are effective and adequate
for the nature and size of the Group’s operations and
business.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED 3RIHEERE R A A

BENXHF

ARBEBERRAMAMABEIEAR (EXHR
Ko R XRR ) B S FT AR A AR B R AR 2 B 48k
B PTAUEE R - A AR ZBEX MR FAL

w5 H -

B\ Ba B R A AR B A

EZgzHBAEARREERER AR ER
KR EBER 1 Rt oA MAm AT HAkge (LA A RERE
B 2E ARKERERZES)  URER
RIWERAKEZEE -EFERERED
BERIAEEEREENAPEZERS 2

MbE -

AEBEEZZESGNAREEENH T
HEEAREZNE - FRA EFSCEER
ZEENAREEEN MY M AKER
REEMABEERGTIBE - EFTSERN
ERFREERLREGCES  BAIERE
BREAMERRGHASBEELS REXBLHE
LEEEMEEBARLEE -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KpME

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders
of Amber Energy Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Amber Energy Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 81 to 187,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2017, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2017 and
of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together
with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements in the
Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Change in depreciation method

HEHEEE

18 M2 BE R

Refer to note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies set out in note 2())
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The Key Audit Matter
E

How the matter was addressed in our audit

AEFEZPRINAEEZERD

The principal activities of the Group are the
development, operation and management of power
plants which are operated as peak module power
plants in Zhejiang Province, the People’s Republic
of China.

EEENTIEXBRER KENEEER EAT
FARAMBENIEANFESHES

In view of the changes in government policies,
operating environment and ongoing assessment
of the sustainability of the “Dual Tariff Policy”,
the Group changed the depreciation method
for certain of its property, plant and equipment,
mainly major generator equipment, from “unit-
of-production” method to “straight-line” method
from 1 January 2017. This change in depreciation
method is a major contributor to the increase
in depreciation charge from RMB19,809,000 in
2016 to RMB54,454,000 in 2017. Note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements explains how
the directors of the Company have formed a
judgement that the change of depreciation method
is appropriate.
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Our audit procedures to assess the change in
depreciation method included the following:
EENANESZEENEREFBREATRIE:

o Inquiring management of the Group about the
reason for the change in depreciation method
and inspecting the internal documents that
support the management’s assessment;

e M BERFEBRELTHERENEFZEZNRE
VA B 448 52 #5838 fE PV T 1 89 PO R ST A

° Evaluating whether there has been a change
in circumstances by inquiring management
on the latest update of the execution and the
sustainability of the “Dual Tariff Policy” based
on their communication result with certain
government officials and further inspecting
relevant documents in relation to the “Dual
Tariff Policy” and other government policies
regulating the industry;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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The Key Audit Matter
FRAREZEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

AEFERPRINMEEZERN

We identified the change in depreciation method as
a key audit matter because the change is a change
in accounting estimates in response to changes in
the environment and circumstances affecting the
entity, and the impact is significant to the financial
results of the Group. The change in estimates
is subject to management bias, and evaluating
the adequacy of support for the management’s
contention that the change in circumstances
warrants a change in depreciation method also
involves judgement.
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° inspecting the evaluation reports prepared
by internal engineers and technicians, and
the confirmation from equipment suppliers
to assess the estimated remaining economic
useful lives of the relevant assets;
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° conducting market research on the
depreciation method and estimated useful lives
of other listed companies in the same industry
and compare with the estimated remaining
useful lives adopted by the Group;
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° recalculating of the approximate effect on the
depreciation charge for the year ended 31
December 2017 as a result of the change in
depreciation method;
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° considering whether the disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group
in respect of the change in depreciation
method for the year ended 31 December 2017
are in compliance with the requirement of the
prevailing accounting standards.
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Assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern

il BEREREEEHED

Refer to note 2(b) to the consolidated financial statements

B2 & IR M i 2(b)

The Key Audit Matter
FAREZEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

AEFEXPRINAEEZERD

At 31 December 2017, the Group had net current
liabilities of RMB173,866,000 (which included cash
and cash equivalents of RMB75,862,000), total
interest-bearing borrowings of RMB565,224,000,
shareholder’s loan of RMB114,782,000 and capital
commitments of RMB21,586,000.
RZE—+tF+ZHA=+—H E£ERHE
EFHEARK173,866,000 (BIERE KA S
EMARKT?75862,000L) FFEBERBARK
565,224,0007T * RER B A K#114,782,0007T X &
A HE AR #21,586,0007T ©

Based on projections of the Group’s profit and cash
inflows from operations and the anticipated ability
of the Group to obtain or renew bank loans and
obtain financial support from an intermediate parent
company to finance its continuing operations,
management consider that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for
the year ending 31 December 2018.
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Our audit procedures to assess the appropriateness
of management’s use of the going concern
assumption in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements included the following:
EETHEEEERUERAMBHRRPEAFERL
EREBENEREFEEATSIE:

° walking through the business planning process
and assessing the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of management’s
internal controls over the assessment of
going concern, including preparing cash flow
forecasts;

e HEKFERBEATFTAARTHERES
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BRI BREGRASREEA:

° comparing the future expected cash flows
in management’s cash flow forecast with
the Group’s business plan approved by the
directors;

e HEBEMNRESAEBAFHRKBEHRER
Bl BEEELCERIANEBEETLER:

o comparing the available bank facilities and
arrangements with underlying documentation
and assessing the impact of any covenants
and other restrictive terms attached thereto;
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The Key Audit Matter
AREZEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

AEFERPRINMEEZERDN

We identified the assessment of the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern as a key
audit matter because the Group has been in a net
current liabilities position since 2012 which has
increased the risk that the Group may not be able
to continue to operate as a going concern and
because the assessment of the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern is dependent upon
certain management assumptions and judgements,
in particular in relation to forecasting electricity
tariffs, annual power generation volumes, capacity
tariff, gross margins and natural gas prices and in
assessing the ability of the Group to renew or obtain
new bank facilities upon expiry of the existing bank
facilities.
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assessing the Group’s ability to renew or
refinance existing banking and other financing
facilities upon maturity by performing a
retrospective review of past renewal or roll-
over history of banking and other financing
facilities in prior years, and inspecting loan
agreements and underlying documentation
for bank loans and other financing facilities
borrowed and repaid after year end;

FREP MR BE S SR TTIE B4 8% MR
TFEHMBMETA ASRITEEZHZ
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Be

evaluating the key assumptions adopted by
management in the preparation of the cash
flow forecast, including electricity tariffs,
annual power generation volumes, capacity
tariff, gross margins and natural gas prices by
comparing these key assumptions with the
historical performance of the power plants,
financial budgets approved by the directors
and terms of future electricity supply as agreed
with local governments;
TEERERENERATEREMERMANE
ERR(BREE - 2FLETE TEEE F
MERRARER) BHZEFIEZRIEZER
WELRE KESHENVBEEREZ M
BT 3R 7E B R R B IR FOETTEL B



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
VRS TR

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
AREZEE EEZERTPRNGEEZSED

° comparing future expected cash flows
with historical data, assessing whether
any variations were consistent with our
expectations based on our understanding of
the Group’s business and considering the
accuracy and reliability of past cash flow
forecasts made by management by comparing
them with the current year’s results;

e HBARREHREREHERELBBEITLER T
HREEERMEHHEEEENY BE5EE
BERENEAREREEEMELENATER 2
METRROERERASEN BHEEFXS
EITHE:

° assessing the sensitivities of the key
assumptions adopted by management in the
going concern assessment and considering
whether management had incorporated any
bias in the selection of such assumptions.

e HIHAEREBERBLETHPARMANEER
BHHEREREREEETREZSRIPRE
BEEARR -
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all the information
included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

18 M2 BEN R
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

18 M2 BEN R
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a
statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence and
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence and, where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Fung Ping Kwong.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

27 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

PROFIT OR LOSS

M A E 22
%Fr: H fm

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE-F-—tF LAt ALFE
2016
—T—RF
Note T RMB'000
(i ARS Tt N A
Revenue Wz Z5 S 348,364 279,173
Operating expenses HERX
Fuel consumption AL A (141,161) (70,030)
Depreciation and amortisation e R (55,791) (21,146)
Repairs and maintenance e RIRE (5,136) (5,690)
Personnel costs 8 T AR 6(b) (26,133) (31,047)
Administrative expenses THRHEX (24,349) (25,183)
Sales related taxes SHE AR TIE (2,191) (1,784)
Other operating expenses Hib &R (3,041) (11,480)
Profit from operations EEBH 90,562 112,813
Finance income B 75 0 A 494 570
Finance expenses B 7% 2 (33,210) (44,316)
Net finance costs BN F5R 6(a) (32,716) (43,746)
Other income H U A 7 2,153 1,694
Profit before taxation B %5t A i F 6 59,999 70,761
Income tax g 8 (25,831) (29,310)
Profit for the year FERiEFH 34,168 41,451
Attributable to: UT&FES:
Equity shareholders of the Company ViN/NEIE Eog &8 41,703
Non-controlling interests FE1E AR A 2 (252)
Profit for the year FERiEF 41,451
Earnings per share SiaH
Basic (RMB) ER(ARE) 11 0.091
Diluted (RMB) wE(ARKE) 11 0.091
The notes on pages 88 to 187 form part of these E88E187TEHFHM ST Al E5 A iEHRE —

consolidated financial statements. Details of dividends
payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note

21(d).

BB o BUEF s M B AR B S R AR

FIBEERMIEE21(d) ©
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For the year ended 37 December 2017
HE_LE—+F+_A=1—HIFE

Profit for the year

F i F

Other comprehensive income for the F R H 2 HULA

year (after tax and reclassification (BB REHSEFER) :
adjustments):
ltems that may be reclassified HgaEmoEzs
subsequently to profit or loss: B=mrIEE
Exchange differences on translation BREBINB A
of financial statements of B s & &
overseas subsidiaries M & E &
Total comprehensive income FRZEKBNERE
for the year
Attributable to: LT & B RE:

Equity shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

KAREERE
FEIE AR R =

Total comprehensive income
for the year

FREERANEE

The notes on pages 88 to 187 form part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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2017
—F-t#F

RMB’000
AREFRT

34,168

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2016
—NEF
RMB’000
ARBTT

41,451

26,358

26,610
(252)

26,358

%88i187ﬁﬁﬁ$wﬁ7%t%$ B 7% TR K
— &5



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION
iR e BB AR R

Note
B E
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment W WEREE 12
Lease prepayments EREE 13
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 8(c)
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE
Trade and other receivables FEUE F K H b5 I8 15
Prepaid income tax TR ET
Cash and cash equivalents RekBE2EEY 16
Current liabilities nEBEE
Shareholder’s loan R RE &K 17
Interest-bearing borrowings TEEE 18
Trade and other payables BB 5 Kk HMKIE 19
Current taxation BIHARH 18
Net current liabilities RBEREFE
Total assets less current liabilities #EERRTER

The notes on pages 88 to 187 form part of these

consolidated financial statements.

At 31 December 2017

R-ZFE—+F+-_A=+—H
2017 2016
ZE—tF Eelbags
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETx PN S
1,107,274 1,161,922
46,152 47,489
4,680 7,739
1,158,106 1,217,150
14,206 13,588
35,014 62,303
681 -
75,862 120,582
125,763 196,473
- 120,367
253,224 413,659
46,405 58,015
- 5,453
299,629 597,494
(173,866) (401,021)
984,240 816,129
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

e B R AIR O AR

At 31 December 2017
RZE—t+Ff+-_HA=4+—H

2017
—F-t#F

2016
—NEF
RMB’000
ARBTT

306,500
10,464
14,664

331,628

484,501

40,149
443,764

483,913

588

484,501

TZ-NF=ZAZ+tBE#LEK

Note RMB’000
(i A R¥TF T
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Shareholder’s loan REERK 17 114,782
Interest-bearing borrowings HEEE 18 312,000
Deferred revenue PR FE Wz 20 12,013
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE 8(c) 23,572
462,367
NET ASSETS EEFE 521,873
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRREE
Share capital fi% 7 21(b) 40,149
Reserves & 481,190
Total equity attributable to equity AATERBREEN
shareholders of the Company RS 521,339
Non-controlling interests iR 534
TOTAL EQUITY MR 521,873
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of KEFEN =
directors on 27 March 2018. BT
WEI Junyong GU Genyong
MHE EE4R 7k
Director Director
EZE BE
The notes on pages 88 to 187 form part of these 88;t187Eiﬁﬁ§iMTT£¢%¢t
consolidated financial statements. =i
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEmEER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE —F—+F+_A=+—HIFFEE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

AATERRRER
Statutory Non-
Share Share Capital Merger suplus  Translation  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Subtotal interests equity
ERRA AR
e e BRGHE Al Gife BN 2itER It 5 g
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

Wit ARETTE  ARETT ARMTR ARMTR ARETn ARETR ARETR ARBTn ARETR ARETR

Balance at 1 January 2016 R-F-~E-A-88
i3 40,149 114,863 24,189 306,883 40,860 (15,310) (42,711) 468,923 840 469,763

Changes in equity for 2016 CE-AEREED

Proft for the year FRER - - - - - - 4,708 4,708 (252) 41,451

Other comprehensive income E2EUA - - - - - (15,008) - (15,009) - (15,009)
Total comprehensive income SERAEE - - - - - (15,009) 41,703 26,610 (252) 26,358
Dividends approved in respect of BHENEERE

previous year 21 - (11,620) - - - - - (11,620) - (11,620)
Appropriation to reserves BERE 21(c)(y) = = = = 6,909 = 6,909) - - -

Balance at 31 December 2016and ~ A=F-7&

1 January 2017 +ZA=+-8%
—§-t5-A-HH
it 40,149 103,243 24,189 306,883 47,769 (30,403) (7,917) 483,913 484,501
Changes in equity for 2017 “E-tERLED
Profit for the year EmER = 34,222 34,222 34,168
Other comprehensive income E2ERA 15,217 - 15,217 15,217
Total comprehensive income FR2EHNAEER 15,217 34,222 49,439 49,385
Dividends approved in respect of BitENEERE
previous year 21(a)i) (12,013) - (12,013)
Appropriation to reserves BERE 2(0)) - (4972 -
Balance at 31 December 2017 Ro%-t%
TRz t-0MER 91,230 24,189 306,883 52,741 (15,186) 521,339
The notes on pages 88 to 187 form part of these FOSE187THFTH W AL EHREMEHREK —
consolidated financial statements. e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n‘/-.r\/\IEE/)"JE%

For the year ended 37 December 2017
HE_LE—+F+_A=1—HIFE

2017 2016

ZE—tF Eelbags

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(i AR Tt PN R

Cash flows from operating activities EZFFHHBRLRE

Profit for the year F N 41,451
Adjustments for: KHEIER -
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - -BERZENE
equipment 6(c) 54,454 19,809
Amortisation of lease prepayments T HE S HE 6(c) 1,337 1,337
Net finance costs B RS R AN F AR 6(a) 32,716 43,746
Net loss on disposal of property, HEME  BER&HE
plant and equipment &5 18 6(c) 912 11,503
Tax expense MIBRAX 8(a) 25,831 29,310
149,418 147,156
Changes in working capital: LEECEE:
(Increase)/decrease in inventories BE (Em),m (618) 326
Decrease in trade and other J?E%Z%%&
receivables H Ath R IR R A 27,285 9,933
Decrease in trade and other payables [EN B 5 Kk
H Ath FRIB R (1,869) (17,539)
Decrease in pledged deposit B 7 508 - 5,000
Cash generated from operating KEEHMBHE
activities 174,216 144,876
Interest paid 25 B (25,172) (31,266)
Income taxes paid =ENiECT (19,998) (19,492)
Net cash generated from operating & EZEFTE
activities R&EFH 129,046 94,118
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SEREMER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_F—+F+=-A=

2017

—E—tF

Note RMB’000
(i AR T

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received

Payment for purchase of property,

plant and equipment

Other cash flows arising from

investing activities

RAGTHFRREASTE
B FE

BEME BE
SELEREA
BRERBELEW
HibRERE

494

(17,092)

1,845

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from interest-bearing

borrowings

Repayment of interest-bearing

borrowings

Dividends paid to equity shareholders

of the Company

REEZHFMRABREEHE

MAEHA ARG R R
SHE R EMEIE

ENARB SRS
Iz B

(14,753)

16(b) 104,000
16(b) (251,000)

21(d)(i) (12,013)

Net cash used in financing activities

MEEZHFMABEEEHE

(159,013)

Net decrease in cash and

cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at

1 January

RarBa%EY
B EE

R—A—HHER2R
He%EY

(44,720)

120,582

Cash and cash equivalents at

31 December

R+-—A=+—H1
BeRBe%EY

16(a)

The notes on pages 88 to 187 form part of these
consolidated financial statements.

2016
—NEF
RMB’000
ARBTT

63,000
(132,000)

(11,620)

(29,430)

150,012

120,582

F88E1STHH M T AL EHEA M B HRE —

25 o
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B I B MR

REPORTING ENTITY AND
BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Amber Energy Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 8
September 2008 under the Companies Law, Cap
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s shares
were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 10 July 2009.

The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2017 of the Company
comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”). The principal
activities of the Group are the development,
operation and management of power plants.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable
International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs), which collective term includes all
applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs), International
Accounting Standards (IASs) and
Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group
are disclosed below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The IASB has issued certain new and revised
IFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 2(e) provides
information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they
are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The measurement basis used in the
preparation of the consolidated financial
statements is the historical cost basis.

The financial report has been prepared on
the basis that the Group will continue to
operate throughout the next twelve months
as a going concern. The Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by
RMB173,866,000 as at 31 December 2017
(31 December 2016: RMB401,021,000).
Based on future projection of the Group’s
profit and cash inflows from operations
and the anticipated ability of the Group to
obtain continued bank loans and financial
support from an intermediate parent
company, Shanghai Pu-Xing Energy Limited
(“Puxing Energy”), to finance its continuing
operations for the year ending 31 December
2018, management believe that the Group
has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable
future and that there are no material
uncertainties related to events or conditions
which, individually or collectively, may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\/j_\

BB KM

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) which
is the functional currency of the Group’s
subsidiaries located in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”). All financial information
presented in RMB has been rounded to the
nearest thousands, except when otherwise
indicated. The functional currency of the
Company and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong
is Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”).

Use of judgements and estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in conformity with IFRSs
requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimates is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Use of judgements and estimates
(Continued)

Notes 8 and 22 contain information about
the assumptions and their risk factors
relating to deferred tax assets and liabilities
and the fair value of financial instruments.
Other key sources of estimation uncertainty
are as follows:

()

(i)

Impairment losses for trade and
other receivables

Impairment losses for trade and other
receivables are assessed and provided
based on the management’s regular
review of ageing analysis and evaluation
of collectability. A considerable level
of judgment is exercised by the
management when assessing the
credit worthiness and past collection
history of each individual customer. Any
increase or decrease in the impairment
losses for bad and doubtful debts
would affect profit or loss in future
years.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives, after
taking into account the estimated
residual value.

Management reviews annually the
useful life of an asset and its residual
value, if any. The depreciation expense
for future periods is adjusted if there
are significant changes from previous
estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR IR AR MY R

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Use of judgements and estimates
(Continued)

(iii) Impairment of property, plant and

(iv)

equipment

The Group tests whether property, plant
and equipment suffered any impairment
whenever an impairment indication
exists. In accordance with note 2(n),
an impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the carrying
amount of the asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. It is reasonably
possible, based on existing knowledge,
that outcomes within the next
financial period that are different from
assumptions could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets in respect of
unused tax losses and deductible
temporary differences are recognised
and measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement
of the carrying amount of the
assets, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. In determining
the carrying amounts of deferred tax
assets, expected taxable profits are
estimated which involves a number of
assumptions relating to the operating
environment of the Group and require a
significant level of judgment exercised
by the directors.

Any change in such assumptions and
judgment would affect the carrying
amounts of deferred tax assets to be
recognised and hence the profit or loss
in future years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Changes in accounting policies

(f)

The IASB has issued several amendments to
IFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group. None of
these impact on the accounting policies of
the Group. However, additional disclosure
has been included in notes 16(b) to satisfy
the new disclosure requirements introduced
by the amendments to IAS 7, Statement
of cash flows: Disclosure initiative, which
require entities to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both changes
arising from cash flows and non-cash
changes.

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power,
only substantive rights (held by the Group
and other parties) are considered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\/-_r\

B I B MR

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests (Continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any
additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests
either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and
the equity shareholders of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are
made to the amounts of controlling and
non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a
subsidiary, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or joint
venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary is
stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(n)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R AR MY R

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 SRR (&)
(Continued)
(9) Goodwill () HE
Goodwill represents the excess of EESEC
()  the aggregate of the fair value of the () FEERENHEEAFE-

consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree; over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess
is recognised immediately in profit or loss as
a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a
business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit (“CGU”), or groups of
CGU, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested
annually for impairment (see note 2(n)).

On disposal of a CGU during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or
loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Foreign currency

()

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the respective functional
currencies of group companies at
exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are
translated to the functional currency
at the exchange rate at the reporting
date. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated
into the functional currency at the
exchange rate when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured based on historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated
at the exchange rate as the date of
the transaction. Foreign currency
differences are generally recognised in
profit or loss.

However, foreign currency differences
arising from the translation of the
following items are recognised in other
comprehensive income:

- available-for-sale equity
investments (except on
impairment, in which case
foreign currency differences
that have been recognised in
other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss);
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

nVT\

B I B MR

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Foreign currency (Continued)

()

(i)

Foreign currency transactions
(Continued)

- a financial liability designated as a
hedge of the net investment in a
foreign operation to the extent that
the hedge is effective; and

- qualifying cash flow hedges to the
extent the hedges are effective.

Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign
operations, including goodwill and
fair value adjustments arising on
acquisition, are translated into RMB at
exchange rates at the reporting date.
The income and expenses of foreign
operations are translated to RMB at
exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions.

Foreign currency differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the
translation reserve, except to the
extent that the translation difference is
allocated to non-controlling interests.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Foreign currency (Continued)

(ii) Foreign operations (Continued)

When a foreign operation is disposed
of in its entirety or partially such that
control, significant influence or joint
control is lost, the cumulative amount
in the translation reserve related to that
foreign operation is reclassified to profit
or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal. If the Group disposes of part
of its interest in a subsidiary but retains
control, then the relevant proportion of
the cumulative amount is reattributed
to non-controlling interests. When
the Group disposes of only part of an
associate or joint venture while retaining
significant influence or joint control, the
relevant proportion of the cumulative
amount is reclassified to profit or loss.

(i) Financial instruments

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets
and financial liabilities —
recognition and derecognition

The Group initially recognises loans and
receivables issued on the date when
they are originated. All other financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially
recognised on the trade date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

nVT\

B I B MR

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Financial instruments (Continued)

()

Non-derivative financial assets
and financial liabilities —
recognition and derecognition
(Continued)

The Group derecognises a financial
asset when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire,
or it transfers the rights to receive the
contractual cash flows in a transaction
in which substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial
asset are transferred, or it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all
of the risks and rewards of ownership
and does not retain control over the
transferred asset. Any interest in such
derecognised financial assets that is
created or retained by the Group is
recognised as a separate asset or
liability.

The Group derecognises a financial
liability when its contractual obligations
are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

Financial assets and financial liabilities
are offset and the net amount
presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the
Group currently has a legal enforceable
right to offset the amounts and intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to
realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Non-derivative financial assets -
measurement

The Group has the following non-
derivative financial assets: loans and
receivables.

Loans and receivables

These assets are initially measured at
fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, they are measured
at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Non-derivative financial liabilities
- measurement

Non-derivative financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value less any
directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these
liabilities are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest
method.

Share capital
Ordinary shares

Incremental costs directly attributable
to the issue of ordinary shares are
recognised as a deduction from equity.
Income tax relating to transaction costs
of an equity transaction is accounted
for in accordance with IAS12.
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B I B MR

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Financial instruments (Continued)

(v)

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds that can be
converted to equity share capital at
the option of the holder, where the
number of shares that would be issued
on conversion and the value of the
consideration that would be received
at that time do not vary, are accounted
for as compound financial instruments
which contain both a liability
component and an equity component.

At initial recognition the liability
component of the convertible bonds
is measured as the present value
of the future interest and principal
payments, discounted at the market
rate of interest applicable at the time
of initial recognition to similar liabilities
that do not have a conversion option.
Any excess of proceeds over the
amount initially recognised as the
liability component is recognised as the
equity component. Transaction costs
that relate to the issue of a compound
financial instrument are allocated to
the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of
proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently
carried at amortised cost. The interest
expense recognised in profit or loss
on the liability component is calculated
using the effective interest method. The
equity component is recognised in the
capital reserve until either the bond is
converted or redeemed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Financial instruments (Continued)

(v)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

If the bond is converted, the capital
reserve, together with the carrying
amount of the liability component at
the time of conversion, is transferred
to share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares issued.
If the bond is redeemed, the capital
reserve is released directly to retained
profits.

() Property, plant and equipment

U}

(ii)

Recognition and measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipment
are measured at cost, which includes
capitalised borrowing costs, less
accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses (see
note 2(n)).

If significant parts of an item of
property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and
equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment is
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised
only if it is probable that the future
economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R AR M R

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 SRR (&)
(Continued)
(i) Property, plant and equipment (i) V¥ -BERRE (£
(Continued)
(iii) Depreciation (iii) #E

Depreciation is calculated to write off
the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment less their estimated
residual values using the straight-
line basis method over their estimated
useful lives, and is generally recognised
in profit or loss. Leased assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the
lease term and their useful lives unless
it is reasonably certain that the Group
will obtain ownership by the end of the
lease term.

The estimated useful lives of significant
items of property, plant and equipment
are as follows:

Buildings and plants 30 years
Major generator 25 — 30 years
equipment

Other machineries 5 — 32 years
Motor vehicles, furniture, 5 — 10 years
fixtures, equipment
and others

Depreciation methods, useful lives
and residual values are reviewed at
each reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

U]

(m)

Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments in the consolidated
statement of financial position represent
the cost of land use rights paid to PRC
government authorities. Lease prepayments
are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see
note 2(n)). Amortisation is charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the
respective periods of the rights.

Leased assets

Leases of property, plant and equipment that
transfer to the Group substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as finance leases. The leased assets are
measured initially at an amount equal to
the lower of their fair value and the present
value of the minimum lease payments.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the assets
are accounted for in accordance with the
accounting policy applicable to that asset.

Assets held under other leases are classified
as operating leases and are not recognised
in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position.

Inventories

Inventories include materials for repairs and
maintenance and spare parts, and are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Inventories are initially recorded at cost and
are charged to operating expenses when
used, or capitalised to property, plant and
equipment when installed, as appropriate,
using weighted average cost basis. Cost of
inventories includes costs of purchase and
transportation costs. Provision for inventory
obsolescence is determined by the excess of
cost over net realisable value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R AR MY R

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(n) Impairment

(i) Non-derivative financial assets

Financial assets not classified as
at fair value through profit or loss,
including an interest in an equity-
accounted investee, are assessed
at each reporting date to determine
whether there is objective evidence of
impairment.

Objective evidence that financial assets
are impaired includes:

106 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED

default or delinquency by a
debtor;

restructuring of an amount due to
the Group on terms that the Group
would not consider otherwise;

indications that a debtor or issuer
will enter bankruptcy;

adverse changes in the payment
status of borrowers or issuers;

the disappearance of an active
market for a security because of
financial difficulties; or

observable data indicating that
there is a measurable decrease in
the expected cash flows from a
group of financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Impairment (Continued)

()

Non-derivative financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets measured at
amortised cost

The Group considers evidence of
impairment for these assets at both an
individual asset and a collective level.
All individually significant assets are
individually assessed for impairment.
Those found not to be impaired are
then collectively assessed for any
impairment that has been incurred but
not yet individually identified. Assets
that are not individually significant are
collectively assessed for impairment.
Collective assessment is carried out by
grouping together assets with similar
risk characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment,
the Group uses historical information
on the timing of recoveries and the
amount of loss incurred, and makes
an adjustment if current economic and
credit conditions are such that the
actual losses are likely to be greater
or lesser than suggested by historical
trends.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR R e

nVT\

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Impairment (Continued)

()

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets measured at
amortised cost (Continued)

An impairment loss is calculated as the
difference between an asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted
at the asset’s original effective interest
rate. Losses are recognised in profit
or loss and reflected in an allowance
account. When the Group considers
that there are no realistic prospects
of recovery of the asset, the relevant
amounts are written off. If the amount
of impairment loss subsequently
decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised,
then the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss.

Non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of
its non-financial assets (other than
inventories and deferred tax assets)
to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.
Goodwill is tested annually for
impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANClAL STATEMENTS
& B TR M EE

n\/-_]_\

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(Continued)

SETBE (&)

(n) BE (%)
HFLHMEE (&

(n) Impairment (Continued)
(ii) Non-financial assets (Continued) (ii)

For impairment testing, assets are
grouped together into the smallest
group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use that are
largely independent of the cash inflows
of other assets or CGUs. Goodwill
arising from a business combination is
allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs
that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an assets
or CGU is the greater of its value in
use and its fair value less costs to
sell. Value in use is based on the
estimated future cash flows, discounted
to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the
asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in
profit or loss. They are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the CGU, and
then to reduce the carrying amounts of
the other assets in the CGU on a pro
rata basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R AR MY AT

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Impairment (Continued)
(ii) Non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss in respect of
goodwill is not reversed. For other
assets, an impairment loss is reversed
only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and

impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with IAS 34,
Interim financial reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria
as it would at the end of the financial
year.

(o) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

(a)

Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.

A defined contribution plan is a post-
employment benefit plan under which an
entity pay fixed contributions into a separate
entity and will have no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further amounts.
Obligations for the statutory defined
contribution pension plans are recognised as
an expense in profit or loss when they are
due.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past
event. It is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n‘/j_\

B I B MR

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Provisions and contingent liabilities

()

(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Revenue

Revenue from sales of electricity is
recognised upon the transmission of electric
power to the power grid companies, as
determined based on the volume of electric
power transmitted and the applicable fixed
tariff rates agreed with the respective electric
power grid companies periodically.

Capacity tariff revenue is recognised on a
time-apportioned basis by reference to the
installed production capacity of individual
power plants and the relevant capacity tariff
rates.

Revenue from sales of heat is recognised
upon the transmission of heat to the third
party customers, as determined based
on the volume of heat transmitted and
the applicable unit price agreed with the
respective customers periodically.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

®)

(u)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they will
be received and the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit
or loss on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the
cost of an asset are initially recognised
as deferred income at fair value and then
recognised in profit or loss as a deduction of
depreciation expenses on a systematic basis
over the useful life of the asset.

Lease payments

Payment made under operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease. Lease
incentives received are recognised as an
integral part of the total lease expense, over
the term of the lease.

Finance income and finance costs

Finance income comprises interest income
and foreign currency gains. Interest income
is recognised as it accrues in profit or loss,
using the effective interest method.

Finance costs comprise interest expense
on borrowings, bank charges and foreign
currency losses and unwinding of the
discount on provisions. Borrowing costs
that are not directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are recognised in profit or
loss using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

nVT\

B I B MR

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Finance income and finance costs

(v)

(Continued)

Foreign currency gains and losses on
financial assets and financial liabilities are
reported on a net basis as either finance
income or finance cost depending on
whether foreign currency movements are in a
net gain or net loss position.

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and
deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

(i) Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax
payable or receivable on the taxable
income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or
receivable in respect of previous years.
The amount of current tax payable or
receivable is the best estimate of the
tax amount expected to be paid or
received that reflects uncertainty related
to income taxes, if any. It is measured
using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. Current
tax also includes any tax arising from
dividends.

Current tax assets and liabilities are
offset only if certain criteria are met.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v) Income tax (Continued)
(ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect
of temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not
recognised for:

o temporary differences on the
initial recognition of assets or
liabilities in a transaction that is
not a business combination and
that affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss;

° temporary differences related to
investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is
probable that they will not reverse
in the foreseeable future; and

o taxable temporary differences
arising on the initial recognition of
goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R AR MY R

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 SRR (&)
(Continued)
(v) Income tax (Continued) (v) Fi@R# (&)
(ii) Deferred tax (Continued) (i) BEHIE (E)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for
unused tax losses, unused tax credits
and deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used.
Future taxable profits are determined
based on business plans for individual
subsidiaries in the Group and the
reversal of temporary difference.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at
each reporting date and are reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable
that the related tax benefit will be
realised; such reductions are reversed
when the probability of future taxable
profits improves.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each reporting date and
recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which
they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax
rates that are expected to be applied
to temporary differences when they
reverse, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting
date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANClAL STATEMENTS
& B TR M EE

n\/-_l_\

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 SR (&)
(Continued)
(v) Income tax (Continued) (v) Fi@e# (&)
(i) Deferred tax (Continued) (i) BREHIE (E)

The measurement of deferred tax
reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the reporting
date, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
offset if there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax liabilities
and assets, and they relate to taxes
levied by the same tax authority on the
same taxable entity, or on different tax
entities, but they intend to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis
or their tax assets and liabilities will be
realised simultaneously.

In determining the amount of current
and deferred tax, the Group takes
into account the impact of uncertain
tax positions and whether additional
taxes and interest may be due. This
assessment relies on estimates and
assumptions and may involve a series
of judgements about future events.
New information may become available
that causes the Group to change its
judgement regarding the adequacy of
existing tax liabilities; such changes to
tax liabilities will impact tax expense in
the period that such as a determination
is made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

B I B MR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w) Dividends

(x)

(v)

Dividends are recognised as a liability in the
period in which they are declared.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production
of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale are capitalised as part
of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part
of the cost of a qualifying asset commences
when expenditures for the asset is being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in
progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale
are interrupted or complete.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

(2)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Individually material operating segments
are not aggregated for financial reporting
purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar
in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods
used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group
if that person:

()  has control or joint control over
the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(i) is a member of the key
management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

i B RS AR Y AT

nv.

2 EBX

(v)

(2)

SETBE (&)

SEERE (&)
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B I B MR

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(z) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:

(i)

(it

(vi)

(vii)

120 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED

The entity and the Group are
members of the same Group
(which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of the Group of which the
other entity is a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party;

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a);

A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

f/)fufaﬁb/@EBE X A)

2 EBEREFBER (&)

(2) FAER (&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e B R AR Y R

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 SR (&)
(Continued)
(z) Related parties (Continued) (z) FHER (&)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any b) FEUNTEMKHENEER
of the following conditions applies: BRASBNBEER: (£)
(Continued)

(vii) The entity, or any member of (viii ZEBNZERBEEL+H—
a group of which it is a part, HomEEETEAKE
provides key management NEIAZEESZEBE
personnel services to the Group or NRRBEETEEEABR
to the Group’s parent. o

Close members of the family of a person are BAWEZRBEBIEE HHEAE AT

those family members who may be expected HAARRSFRAEErEZALT

to influence, or be influenced by, that person IXEFENKEKE -

in their dealings with the entity.

3 DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUES 3 EBEAY¥E
A number of the Group’s accounting policies AEBETEHRREBERATEGTE
and disclosures require the measurement of TREIETHMEERBENAFE - AF
fair values, for both financial and non-financial BEERBIATHEEEAEFER, K
assets and liabilities. Fair values have been FERAE BT AFERAERINEM
determined for measurement and/or disclosure BT ERABATEREREREEK
purposes based on the following methods. BEMNEEME-

When applicable, further information about the
assumptions made in determining fair values is
disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or
liability.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 —Z—t&E®RE 121



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R AR MY AT

3 DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUES
(Continued)

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group uses observable market data
as far as possible. Fair values are categorised
into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based
on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as
follows:

o Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities;

U Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices
included in Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);

° Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

(a) Trade and other receivables, trade and
other payables

The carrying values of these financial assets
and liabilities approximate their respective
fair values due to the short maturities of
these instruments.

(b) Interest-bearing borrowings and
shareholder’s loan

The carrying amounts of interest-bearing
borrowings and shareholder’s loan
approximate their fair values based on the
borrowing rates currently available for bank
loans with similar terms and maturity.
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CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The Group has determined to change the
depreciation method for certain of its property,
plant and equipment, primarily major generator
equipment, from “unit-of-production” method to
“straight-line” method effective from 1 January
2017.

The power plants of the Group are operated as
peak module power plants in Zhejiang Province,
the PRC so that they only generate power
according to the deployment of power grid
companies during peak hours.

Before the trial run of the “Dual Tariff Policy” on
1 January 2015, the Group’s annual estimated
power generation hours for each power plant
of the Group were relatively consistent with
the annual planned power generation hours
approved by relevant government authorities. The
Group’s operation revenue was directly related
to the actual power generation hours and varied
accordingly.

With the implementation of “Dual Tariff
Policy” on a trial basis since 1 January 2015
following a reduction of annual planned power
generation hours, the Group’s volume tariff
revenue decreased with the decrease of actual
power generation hours in 2015 and 2016.
As compensation, the Group received subsidy
income in the form of capacity tariff revenue
from power grid companies. Considering the
implementation of the “Dual Tariff Policy” was on
a trial basis and the significant uncertainty around
the sustainability of the policy in the future, the
Group did not revise the depreciation method for
major generator equipment in 2015 and 2016.
Instead, in anticipation of the expected reduction
in actual power generation volume, an impairment
loss on the relevant property, plant and equipment
of RMB139,943,000 was recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2014.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ISR R M A
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CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

In 2017, following the release of certain
government policy regulating the industry and
through ongoing internal assessment and
the communication with relevant government
authorities, the Group’s management considers
the uncertainty around the sustainability of the
“Dual Tariff Policy” has reduced to a sufficient
extent and expects the “Dual Tariff Policy” would
continue to be in place in 2017 and for the
foreseeable future. In the opinion of the directors,
the increased clarity over the “Dual Tariff Policy”
from 2017 constitutes a significant change in the
operating environment of the Group. To reflect
the depreciation of major generator equipment
over its estimated remaining useful lives in a
more systematic manner, the Group has changed
the depreciation method for major generator
equipment to “straight-line” method as of 1
January 2017.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ISR R M A

4 CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4 ST EETEE (&)
(Continued)
The table below shows the details of estimated TRINTFEZRERER T —LF—
remaining production hours and estimated A—BZAlszBMBHESREERE
remaining useful lives of those major generator AR TERT FIeRE R FRFFS -
equipment before and after 1 January 2017:
After
1 January
2017
Before 1 January 2017 (straight-line
(unit-of-production method) method)
(hours) (years)
—T—tF
—F—t&E—H—BZH —B—BZ2#&
(TERE) (E&IE)
(7VBF) (%)
Estimated
Total remaining Estimated
production production remaining
Category hours hours useful lives
et #as et EER
Al MEERY S ERE & £ IR
Major generator equipment 80,000-120,000 49,297-119,778 16-29
TELRERME
As compared to the original “unit-of-production” HRI[THE]EZHERBRBEHE-F

method and based on the actual power
generation hours for the year ended 31 December
2017, the above change in accounting estimates
using the “straight-line” method has increased the
depreciation of property, plant and equipment by
approximately RMB34,307,000 for the year ended
31 December 2017.

—tFtT AT HUEFENERS
BERZCUTERIAFTEN LA S
AEEREHE—_T-EF T A=t
BIEFENYE BERREBITEL N
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B I B MR

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are
development, operation and management of
power plants.

Revenue comprises volume tariff revenue,
capacity tariff revenue and revenue from
sales of heat.

Volume tariff revenue represents the sale of
electricity to power grid companies.

Capacity tariff revenue represents a subsidy
income from power grid companies,
following a reduction in the annual planned
power generation volume of the Group’s
power plants for supply to the power grid
companies and changes in the electricity
tariff policies applicable to the Group since
2015, pursuant to the “Notice Regarding the
Trial Implementation of Dual Tariff for Natural
Gas Power Generating Units in Zhejiang
Province” issued by the Price Bureau of
Zhejiang Province in June 2015.

Revenue from sales of heat represents the
sale of heat to third party customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

(b)

Revenue (Continued)

The amount of each significant category of
revenue recognised during the year is as
follows:

nVT\

5 Wak

(a)

Nl e

DEWE (&

Wegs (&)

RENBRNEER W
LR

SRk

2017
—F-tF
RMB’000
AREFT

2016
—E—RF
RMB’000
AR T

Volume tariff revenue
Capacity tariff revenue
Revenue from sales of heat

T D} &
Of b feo
‘z*:r EH rHH

BEBRA
EH&U\
A

128,616 67,233
211,940 211,940
7,808 =

348,364 279,173

The Group’s customer base is concentrated
and includes only one customer with whom
transactions have exceeded 10% of the
Group’s revenues. In 2017, volume tariff
revenue and capacity tariff revenue from
this customer, including its subsidiary,
amounted to RMB340,556,000 (2016:
RMB279,173,000). Details of concentrations
of credit risk arising from this customer are
set out in note 22(a).

Segment reporting

The most senior executive management have
identified four operating segments, which are
the four power plants, namely:

° Amber (Anji) Gas Turbine Thermal
Power Co., Ltd. (“Anji Power Plant”);

° Zhejiang Amber De-Neng Natural Gas
Power Generation Co., Ltd. (“De-Neng
Power Plant”);

(b)

AEBENBEFPERER ABHFE—
HEP ﬁx%tﬂZK%@H&m
W10% R_TE—+F REZET
F(BEENBAR)NESEE
WARBREBBWAEZIARK
340,556,000 (ZZE—RNF: AR
#279,173,0007T) BB FEAE
WEFEERRAOFBEHRNHZE
22(a) °

PERE
SEARERERTANELED
2B TR MR E R

« RE(RE)MERBARAD
AZEEH)

o MIRMBERAREERR
NAE (TFEREE /] )
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5 WmKkDIHRE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) #EFHE (2)
e Zhejiang Amber Jing-Xing Natural Gas . ﬁﬁflfﬁﬂflﬁiﬁiﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁ
Power Generation Co., Ltd. (“Jing-Xing NA(TREEmR]) : &

Power Plant”); and

e Hangzhou Amber Blue Sky Natural Gas . Tﬁ)l\ﬂ;fﬂﬁ%ﬂiﬁﬁ?’*ﬁﬁlﬁ
Power Generation Co., Ltd. (“Blue Sky A ([EEXEBEM]) -
Power Plant”).
The most senior executive management i BB TS R E?fﬂﬁﬁlﬁf@
are of the view that these four operating R A AR EE ’“*BFEK
segments contribute to the entire revenue FE2 K - BB FRAE
of the Group and should be aggregated to EmMtE £EIRF TPEEK
a single reportable segment of the Group, EBRRBEMAL WEEHARER
power segment, for financial reporting B-2HOH —FHhHHo

purpose as they have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of
nature of products, production processes,
the type of class of customers and the
regulatory environment.

Segment assets include all tangible, PHEEREMBENEE BN
intangible assets and current assets with BERRBEE HIABEREMD
the exception of other corporate assets. ¥EE-DHBAERRBRENS W
Segment liabilities include trade creditors HETHELENESEEKEE
and accruals attributable to sales activities ARRERARE NS EBEEEE
of the power segment, shareholder’s loan, WIRTTEE ETEECEAE-

and bank borrowings managed directly by
the power segment, with the exception of
corporate liabilities.
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i)

Segment results, assets and
liabilities (Continued)

Information regarding to the Group’s
reportable segment as provided to
the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purpose of
resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance for the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 is
set out below.

nVT\

5 WaEkso

Nl e

W E (&)

(b) SEBE|E (&)

(i)

Jf’*ﬁ%ﬂ% "BERER

$%@Tﬁrf#\%$$@%%ﬁﬂ(
BRERED KRR KT ED
BRANBEZFT—LFR
—E-RE+ZA=t+—HL
BEENEHRD AER L0
T

Reportable segment revenue o=
Reportable segment profit WD IR
Reportable segment assets EWRNEEE
Reportable segment liabilities EWmOHERE

2017 2016
—T—CF IS
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTTT PN S
348,364 279,173
71,206 87,604
WITRLYS 1,302,701
721,847 895,515

The measure used for reporting
segment profit is “adjusted earnings
before taxes” (“Adjusted EBT”). To
arrive at Adjusted EBT, the Group’s
earnings are further adjusted for
items not specifically attributed to
the segment, such as directors’ and
auditors’ remuneration and other head
office or corporate administration costs.

ARFTES
BIEAERBEMAEN] (&

FHHEEBT])

o8B F 2 F7 A

EBT AKBEHI IFFZD

BE

FIEMGIER (INESE Rz A

i N Eo Al 2

Bk bEE K

)R BEFET T — P
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5

Gl e

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)
(ii) Reconciliations of reportable

Wk o EmE (&

(b) #EFHE (2)
(i) ZB#HAEBYns 1673 EBER

segment revenue, profit or loss,
assets and liabilities

1=F-¢54:

2017 2016
—T—CF Emkaayag:d
Revenue RMB’000 RMB’000
W 25 NGBl ARET T
Reportable segment revenue 2o U= 348,364 279,173
Consolidated revenue e WEs 348,364 279,173
2017 2016
—E—tF PeEgs
Profit RMB’000 RMB’000
s F INCS A AR T T
Reportable segment profit 2R PR F 71,206 87,604
Unallocated corporate expenses &7 Bl (2 X (11,207) (16,843)
Consolidated profit RE BRI A R
before taxation 70,761
2017 2016
—ET—tE = —NF
Assets RMB’000 RMB 000
BE ARBTT PN
Reportable segment assets ERDOPBEE 1,264,854 1,392,701
Unallocated corporate assets AOMEHEEE 19,015 20,922
Consolidated total assets LeEEEEE 1,283,869 1,413,623
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Reconciliations of reportable
segment revenue, profit or loss,
assets and liabilities (Continued)

Liabilities

Bff

5}

i B RS AR Y AT

Wk o EBERE (&)

(b) SEBE|E (&)
(i) 27 EBWE - Rz BER

Reportable segment liabilities

=
Unallocated corporate liabilities ARH B DEE 1

Consolidated total liabilities oEeE8

EfE#HKE (&)
2017 2016
— Tt IS
RMB’000 RMB’000
PNEL B AR T T
721,847 895,515
40,149 33,607
761,996 929,122

Geographic information

All of the Group’s revenue is derived
from the volume tariff revenue, capacity
tariff revenue and revenue from sales of
heat in the PRC, and the principal non-
current assets employed by the Group
are located in the PRC. Accordingly, no
analysis by geographical segments has
been provided for the year.

(i) W E#
REBMEHRERATFENE
ETBRA -FEETBERAR
WERNKA L AREERD
TEFRBEEHURPEH-
ES 1 AR SN I 2 e i i )
A7 o
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6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6 KFEAER
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ Bﬁf\%ﬂ @A Ty eR (G A) AT IR E
(crediting): EH
(a) Net finance costs (a) MBREFHE
2017 2016
—ET—tF —E—RE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT PN S
Interest income B WA (494) (670)
Finance income A (494) (670)
Interest on interest-bearing FFEEBER
borrowings and shareholder’s loan IRERERF B 35,003
Interest on convertible bonds AR ESF B 9,116
Total interest expense on THBENERZ AR
financial liabilities 44119
Net foreign exchange loss HNHE B3 18 ) 58 148
Bank charges RITE A 49
Finance expenses R 44,316
Net finance costs B F5 PR AN V5 58 43,746
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6

i B RS AR Y AT

contribution plan

Contribution to defined TE R T 2B R

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 6 KBFARER (&
(b) Personnel costs (b) EIEE
2017 2016
—ET—tF —EF—RE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT PN=LSw
Wages, salaries and other benefits e IERHMBER 24,081 28,882

2,052 2,165

26,133 31,047

The Group participates in pension funds
organised by the PRC government.
According to the respective pension fund
regulations, the Group is required to pay
annual contributions. The Group remits
all the pension fund contributions to the
respective social security offices, which are
responsible for the payments and liabilities
relating to the pension funds. The Group has
no obligation for payment of retirement and
other post-retirement benefits of employees
other than the contributions described
above.

7N ER [ 2 B b B KT AR AR A AR UK
T REMHBERASRTE AEEA
BERR - AKERELRRER
XA AR S R &R
ERARERKEEBONRRE
TE B B fEERON - AR B E SR

RR R E A AR AR 1R A8 AN R O
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6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Personnel costs (Continued)

The Group also operates a defined
contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees employed by the Company in
Hong Kong. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Other items

6 BRBAER (&)
(b) BIRAE (&)
ZN-SE1D)\YieS 7 L R N e - S
B BARRIRERBEANZERE
BRI ERBFAHELTES RN
wAEE ([RfESTE) - HkZ
BEEAFEANLEL XRR
FEREEFIGRAINKERR
k- BBEtEMEERBLE
BESRE EAKEEENFR
BoAEBENREEHKNITIARE
TR EARTHEBES -

(c) HiIEE

2017 2016

“E—tF Pmatabagd

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETRT PN S0

Operating lease charges KEHSER 1,077 1,234
Net loss on disposal of HEWE BE K

property, plant and equipment RIEEBFE 912 11,503
Amortisation of lease prepayments B EE (K5E13)

(note 13) 1,337 1,337
Depreciation (note 12) E (Hik12) 54,454 19,809
Auditor’s remuneration = E R &

— audit services —Z RIS 1,311 1,299
— other services —H bR - 1,900
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RS AR MR

7 OTHER INCOME 7 Hft A

2017 2016
—g—t5 [EEEPNE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ICTEE N ARETR

Government grants A 78 B 2,153 1,694
The Group was awarded unconditional AEEHE—Z—+F+-A=+—H8H1t
government grants amounting to RMB2,153,000 F 5 & B AR BUN # BE A R 2,153,000
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: T (ZF—RF: AR%1,694,0007T) °
RMB1,694,000).

8 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 8 HZEBRTRANMAEBH
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) Income tax in the consolidated (a) HFEBBRAWVFFEHRIE:

statement of profit or loss represents:

2017 2016
“¥—tF kgt

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE TR NS

Current tax BNEARE IE
PRC Corporate Income Tax PRSI 22,050
Under provision in respect of NEFEREETR

prior years 318

22,368

Deferred tax BEHIE
Origination and reversal of TR EEES REE

temporary differences 6,942
Total income tax expense in the REBmERNEN

consolidated statement of Sz 4858

profit or loss 29,310
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR E

8 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

(a) Income tax in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss represents:
(Continued)

()  Pursuant to the rules and regulations
of the Cayman Islands, the Group is
not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman lIslands.

(i) No provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax has been made for the
subsidiaries located in Hong Kong as
these subsidiaries did not have any
assessable profits subject to Hong
Kong Profits Tax for the year ended 31
December 2017 (2016: Nil).

(i) The provision for PRC Corporate
Income Tax is based on the respective
Corporate Income Tax rates applicable
to the subsidiaries located in the PRC
as determined in accordance with
the relevant income tax rules and
regulations of the PRC.

According to the PRC Corporate
Income Tax Law, the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to
the unified tax rate of 25%.

The PRC Corporate Income Tax Law
and its relevant regulations impose a
withholding tax at 10%, unless reduced
by a tax treaty or arrangement, for
dividend distributions out of the PRC
from earnings accumulated from 1
January 2008. Undistributed earnings
generated prior to 1 January 2008 are
exempted from such withholding tax.
As at 31 December 2017, deferred tax
liabilities of RMB23,572,000 (2016:
RMB14,664,000) have been recognised
in connection with the withholding
tax that would be payable on the
distribution of the retained profits of the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 8 HMEBRXANNWER (&

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(Continued)

(a) Income tax in the consolidated (a) FEBEZRANFABRBIE: (£)
statement of profit or loss represents:

(Continued)

(iv)  The Group has not recognised deferred (iv) BT KAIRER RIKER G
tax assets in respect of cumulated ﬂ HEAEEHAEFHOF
tax losses of RMB2,329,000 (2016: = AEEWEMRFTHRIBE
RMB2,161,000) as it is not probable BARK?2 329,000 (=%
that future taxable profits will be —NF: AR#2,161,0007T)
available against which the Group can BRELEHEEE -
utilise the benefit therefrom.

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense (b) BRERAREEMHRIERIHEE

i B RS AR Y AT

and accounting profit at applicable tax

rate:

at it FIH AR -

Profit before taxation

Notional tax on profit before taxation,
calculated at the rates applicable to
profits in the countries concerned

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax effect of unused tax losses not
recognised

Tax effect of prior years’ unrecognised
temporary differences utilised

Under provision in prior years

Withholding tax on profits retained by
PRC subsidiaries

Actual tax expense

2017 2016

—E—tF — N

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARE T PN S

B 56 A% 59,999 70,761
Br B AT B ) B R IR IR

B8 B R A9 4 A A

HEHE 20,118
TAMBAZOR BT E 85
AERN A ARHIEEIE

BT 5 2 42 197
E@J)ﬂiﬂ?‘iiﬁfﬁﬁﬁ@

MBBBENHBEEE (2,528) (364)
BAFEREBETIR 1,140 318
B BT B R BAR B v )

R TEHEL 8,908 8,956
ERBIERX 25,831 29,310
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Gl e

nv-_r\
8 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 8 HEBERANAMER (&
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)
(c) Recognised deferred tax assets and (c) EHRELEHESERERE
liabilities
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are REREEERBEBNT:

attributable to the following:

Assets Liabilities

AE Afg

2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE-tf Pl — Tt N
G0N RMB'000 (RGLTEXIE  RMB'000
ARETR PNSART ARETT NS ART

Property, plant and equipment nE BERRE 1,667
Withholding tax on profits retained 7% & &+ B {1 B 22 A

by the Group’s PRC subsidiaries 4% & | £ & 07 - - (23,572) (14,664)
Government grants BT 4 Bh 3,003 2,616 =

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) EERELE,/ (BE) 4,680 7,739 (23,572)
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e B RS AR MR

8 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 8 HEBRXANNFER (&)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)
(d) Movement in deferred tax balance (d) FRIBEHRIELREE
during the year
Withholding
tax on profits
retained by
Property, the Group’s
Unutilised plant and PRC  Government
tax losses equipment  subsidiaries grants Total
56
HEHBAT
AHRAY PEBRER REEH
HEESE B HEmH B R B @zt

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL ARETr ARETT AR¥Tr ARET:

At 1 January 2016 K-®-xE-F-B 1,284 1,768 (5,708) 2,673 17
Recognised in consolidated REEBRRER
statement of profit or loss (1,284) 3,355 (8,956) (57) (6,942)
At 31 December 2016 and R-B-%E
1 January 2017 +ZA=+-8B%
—§-t#-f-8 5,123 (14,664) (6,925)
Recognised in consolidated REEABREEER
statement of profit or loss (3,446) (8,908) (11,967)
At 31 December 2017 RZB-t§
+=B=+-B 1,677 (23,572) (18,892)
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Are B RS ERAR MY A

9 DIRECTOR’S REMUNERATION 9 EEME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to RIFEEE QRGN E383(1) IR AE) (I
section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies BESNZmER) ROIE2HNEBENES
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies BemT

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2017
BECF-tHF+-A=1+-HLER
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fee in kind bonuses  contributions Total
fig 2R
Ezne BEYHE BREL  BREEER @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR

Executive directors BITEE

Mr. Wei Junyong (redesignated WEBRE (RZT—F
as executive director on 8 June 2017) NANBBELEATES)

Mr. Gu Genyong BRAEE (RZE—+F
(appointed on 8 June 2017) NANBEZE)

Mr. Chai Wei (resigned on 2 June 2017) REEE(RZS—tF

ABZBE)
Non-executive directors FuTES

Mr. Liu Xuanhua (resigned on 2 June 2017) BB E%4 (RS —+F
~NAZBEHE)

Mr. Li Jinguan FER%EE
Mr. Zhang Lianghua RRELE
(appointed on 8 June 2017) (R=F-+ExANA
EZf)
Mr. Wei Junyong (redesignated WEBRE (RZT—1F
as executive director on 8 June 2017) NABBTEHTES)

Independent non-executive directors BUEHTES

Mr. Tse Chi Man HEXEE
Mr. Yu Wayne W. aEELE
Mr. Yao Xianguo thEE K &
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9

B B R AR AL

n‘/T\
DIRECTOR’S REMUNERATION (Continued) 9 EEME (&)
Year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z-— A E+-A=+—HIEE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fee in kind bonuses  contributions Total
5o EZRk
EEHe EMNE WEEA  RINEEIERK @it
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Chai Wei KELE - 490 688 38 1,216
Mr. Lai Chun Yu BRFEE (RZZT—RF
(resigned on 22 June 2016) NAZTZBEE) - 303 50 8 361
Non-executive directors FRiTES
Mr. Wei Junyong BHBEE - - - - -
Mr. Liu Xuanhua ATELAE = = = = =
Mr. Li Jinquan (appointed on 2 June 2016)  Z& R &4 (RZT—RF
NAZHEZE) = = = = =
Independent non-executive directors ~ BHUFHITEE
Mr. Tse Chi Man HEEE 174 - - - 174
Mr. Yu Wayne W. fEELE 174 - - - 174
Mr. Yao Xianguo xR % E 174 - - - 174
522 793 738 46 2,099

No emoluments were paid by the Group during
the year to directors in connection with their
retirement from employment with the Group,
or inducement to join. The director emolument
for Mr. Wei Junyong for the year ended 31
December 2017 was borne by Puxing Energy, the
intermediate parent company of the Company,
who has waived its right to seek reimbursement

from the Company.

FRAEERENESREBSUESMNE
$EIM£@ﬁ§H%%$M% B3
—tFt+-A=+—H
¢¢rmmim$ ANEEEARE
HERERERRARAME

BEREBZE

E B pe&E

HHEF) o
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nVT\

10

Gl e

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest
emoluments, two (2016: one) are directors
whose emoluments are disclosed in note 9. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the
other three (2016: four) individuals are as follows:

Wages, salaries and other benefits I&-
Contributions to defined contribution plan & Z8

10 REHF AL
AEBREESFTALTF WME(ZE
—ARNEFE —RZ)BEST HEHeEENW
O HM =% (ZZT—RF ML) A+
NS @zEmT

2017 2016

:@—"bﬁ —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT NG S

e kEMEF 927 1,566
FRET B R 86 131
1,697

The above individuals’ emoluments are within the
band of HK$nil to HK$1,000,000 (2016: HK$nil to
HK$1,000,000).

No emoluments were paid by the Group during
the year to the five highest paid employees in
connection with their retirement from employment
with the Group, or inducement to join.

142 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED 3828 AR A

Fit A &2 T = T £1,000,000
B (ZZE—F:ZE L E1,000,000
Bt e

FR-AREMERNAR RS ESBER
sk 1F /5 HN B2 AN 5= 181 1) 2% Y i ) L S A B



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share
is based on the profit attributable to ordinary
equity shareholders of the Company of
RMB34,222,000 (2016: RMB41,703,000)
and the weighted average of 458,600,000
(2016: 458,600,000) ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share was the same as
basic earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016
as there were no dilutive potential shares
during the year. The calculation of diluted
earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2016 does not assume the
conversion of convertible bonds because the
conversion of convertible bonds would be
anti-dilutive.

n\/-_]_\

11
(a)

(b)

B Bt 7% 3R 3= B &E

BREBF

BREAXRF
EREARBFIEFARDG L BE
?&%%E{ﬁ)ﬁﬁw\ﬁ%’ﬂ 222,000
T (ZZE—7RF : AR%41,703,000
5ﬂ&E¥HELWMW%$W
£1458,600, oooﬁx( T—KNF:
458,600,0000% ) 5 &

BSik#ERF
B R R 4 B T BB AR D - AR
—+F+-_A=+—BKZ
E-RNFE+_A=+—BILEE
MEREERMNETRERNRZF
BE -stEHE—_T—X<FE+=A
=+ HLEFENSREFTRF
B WERKEHRIESRES BA
EIHAERESEEREERR -
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Gl e

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

12 ME - BEKRKE

Motor
vehicles,
furniture,
Major fixtures,
Buildings  generator Other  equipment Assets under
and plants  equipment machineries  and others construction Total
RE R
TERE RE RGR
BFRERE it Hib e it EREE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREBTn ARETn ARETr ARETr ARETR
Cost: KA
At 1 January 2016 RZE-R"F-A-H 271,815 1,239,948 179,752 16,222 25,746 1,733,483
Additions NE 143 - 332 315 21,615 22,405
Transfer from assets under construction BEEHEEEE 421 18,411 870 16 (19,718) -
Disposals e = (21,643 (474) (153) - (22,270)

At 31 December 2016 and

ﬁiﬁfﬁ¢+iﬁi+—ﬁ

1 January 2017 kZE—-t%5-fA-H 272,379 1,236,716 180,480 27,643 1,733,618
Additions e 117 150 430 1,771
Transfer from assets under construction ~ ERBEREE 2,283 22,186 = (24,544) =
Disposals HE (215) (61) (2,359)
At 31 December 2017 RZB—tF+ZA=1— 274,564 1,258,991 179,255 3529 1,733,030
Accumulated depreciation and REHTERBEBE:

impairment losses:

At1 January 2016 RZE-"E-Hf—H (63,277) (370,687) (116,197) (12,499) - (562,654)
Charge for the year FRER (7,862) (3,248) (6,394) (2,305) - (19,809)
Written back on disposals HERR - 10,192 47 104 - 10,767
At 31 December 2016 and RZE-RE+ZA=1—H

1 January 2017 R-E—+F-f-H (711,139) (363,743  (122,120) (14,694) (571,696)
Charge for the year ERER (7,144) (30,331) (15,860) (1,119) (54,454)
Written back on disposals HERE (] 44 231 54 394
M 31 December 2017 RoZ—+E+-f=+- (78218)  (304,030)  (137,749) (15,759) (625,756)
Net book value: FREFE:

At 31 December 2017 RZE—t&F+-fA=+- 196,346 864,961 41,506 1,107,274
At 31 December 2016 RZE-AF+-A=1-H 201,240 872,973 58,360 1,706 27,643 1,161,922
()  As at 31 December 2017, no property, plant i R=FT—LtF+-A=+—H0 #
and equipment were pledged as collateral YR BB MR E ﬁ#ﬁ RERAT
for bank loans. As at 31 December 2016, B AR 7 Dﬂ+iﬁ/\ /\Ef—
A=+—HB ATEFFEAEEAA

certain property, plant and equipment
with aggregate carrying amount of
RMB175,571,000 were pledged as collateral
bank loans. (see note 18(i)).

R#175,571,000c I ¥ - W=
MR EBEERAARTERNIKIR S
(B HMzE18(3)) °
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13 LEASE PREPAYMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Nl e

nVT\

13 FE{J#EE

RMB’000
ARET T

Cost: R :
At 1 January 2016 R-ZE—XR"F—H—H 59,020
Additions NE S

At 31 December 2016 and

RZZE—RF+-_A=+—8BK
—-=

1 January 2017 —tF—H—H
Additions NE
At 31 December 2017 R-ZB—+tF+_A=+—H
Accumulated amortisation: g
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—XRF—H—H (10,194)
Charge for the year FRNER (1,337)
At 31 December 2016 and RZE—RFE+ZA=+—HK

1 January 2017 —E—+F—H—H (11,531)
Charge for the year FRNEH (1,337)
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+F+=-HA=+—8 (12,868)
Net book value: BREFE
At 31 December 2017 R—_ZE—+F+=-_A=+—H
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RE+ZHA=+—H 47,489

()  Lease prepayments represent cost of land
use rights in respect of lands located in the
PRC with a lease period of 30 to 50 years
when granted.

(i)  As at 31 December 2017, no land use

rights were pledged. As at 31 December

2016, certain land use rights with aggregate

carrying amount of RMB9,877,000 were

pledged as collateral for bank loans in 2016.

(see note 18(i)).

() FENESIERHEHEBRI0E0F
B R B B (S R AR

R-E—+F+-_A=+—H"#
EIMFERAEEEF - R —X
F+-_A=+—H HETRFE@E
EA AR 877,000 TH) 1 fF
BEEBARITEXRNERR (R
BEEE18() ) °

(it
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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14

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results,
assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of

14 RBRRANRE

shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Percentage of

TREFAETEXE
BEMNHMBRRNFS-
P 0 1B & & ﬁﬂx °

$¢l¥ HBEY
SHEERIN

Place and date of equittgeag;i;:t::le to Issued and
establishment/ i y fully paid-up/
incorporation FREREREES registered capital
Name of company I/ 5 A S B Direct Indirect BITRERE Principal activity
AT EHE kB EE ik HHEX TREH
Amber Bluesky (HK) Limited Hong Kong 100% - HK$10,001/ Investment holding
(“Amber Bluesky”) 26 June 2008 HK$20,000 \
FHEX (B%)ARAT 10,0017,/ RELR
(TNEX]) ZEENFRAZTRA 20,000/ 7T
Amber Jingxing (HK) Limited Hong Kong 100% = HK$10,001/ Investment holding
(*Amber Jingxing") 26 June 2008 HK$20,000 \
FIHRE(EB)ERRE Bk 10,0018,/ REZR
(13AmE]) ZEENFRAZTRA 20,000/ 7T
Amber Deneng (HK) Limited Hong Kong 100% = HK$10,001/ Investment holding
(“Amber Deneng”) 26 June 2008 HK$20,000 )
il (é%)ﬁﬁi Bk 10,0018 7T,/ REZR
(Uﬁfﬂu 8¢ ] ZEENFRAZTRA 20,000/ 7T
Amber Anji (HK) Limited Hong Kong 100% = HK$1/ Investment holding
(“Amber Anji”) 2 September 2008 HK$10,000 )
RIRE (B8)BERDA & 1L/ REZR
(M#MRE]) —ZEN\ENAZH 10,0007 7T
Blue Sky Power Plant The PRC S 100% US$17,171,400/ Power generation
15 December 2004 US$17,171,400
EXEM i E 17,171,400% T,/ BE
—EENE+-_A+ER 17,171,400% T
Jing-Xing Power Plant The PRC S 100% US$16,660,000/ Power generation
6 January 2005 US$16,660,000
REABH th 16,660,000 7%,/ %8
—ZTRE-AKA 16,660,000% 7T
De-Neng Power Plant The PRC - 100% US$18,408,710/ Power generation
18 August 2004 US$18,408,710
BEER HE 18,408,710% 7T,/ BE
—ZEMENATNE 18,408,710 1T
Aniji Power Plant The PRC - 100% US$46,011,933/ Power generation and
25 February 2011 US$51,700,000 heat supply
ZHER i 46,011,933% 7T/ FERHER
—Z——%-fA-+1H 51,700,000 7T
Wenling Juneng Wind Power The PRC - 68% RMB4,000,000/ Power generation
Generation Co., Ltd. 3 July 2014 RMB50,000,000 (Under design and
(“Wenling Power Plant”) planning stage)
BEERENREARLA ik AR #4,000,0007,/ ‘ X
(MREEH) —mE+A=H AR#50,000000t  (ERRBEHER)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RS AR MR

15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 15 BWEZ K HMRIE

2017 2016
—g—t5 [EEEPNE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ICTEE N ARETR

Trade receivables FEUNE 5 5 IE 22,529 30,583
Prepayments SEEN B 2,607 2,705
Value added tax recoverable AR —FRES
within one year RE 7,702 26,650
Other receivables H 4th fE U SR IE 2,176 2,365
35,014 62,303
All of the trade and other receivables are expected FRERWE S RHEMKRIBEHAIN —F
to be recovered within one year. w4 [E -
At 31 December 2017, ageing analysis of trade EQE:;?:‘EE"":H =t—H ARERE
=+ ~— == HEA N
receivables of the Group based on the invoice WB 5 SRR B R B AT RN Rl AT
date is as follows: T
2017 2016
“EF—tE Pmkaes
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT PN R
Within 1 month —@ARA 22,529 30,583
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 16 BERBRESEYURHEMBE SR
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION =g
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) RERRSFEFEYHRN:

2017 2016
“E—tF Pt
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET PN S

Cash at bank RITIFERK 28,999 47,043
Cash at other financial institutions 77 i H b & Be & 18 #9 35 & 46,863 73,539
75,862 120,582
Cash at other financial institutions represents FHRREMSREENIRS RIFN
the demand deposits at Wanxiang Finance RARRRREMBRARERTBKE
Co., Ltd. (“Wanxiang Finance”), a fellow AR ([EMEB])HEERFR-

subsidiary of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥ 2% MY &

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 16 RERREEEYUREMRER

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION a8 (#&)

(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising (b) MEFTBELEBEHER
from financing activities
The table below details changes in the TR MEEHMELELEEE
Group’s liabilities from financing activities, B2EBHFB BREASERIERE
including both cash and non-cash changes. 2 -mELTHELCABEERS
Liabilities arising from financing activities are MEEIARRERERNEAEE
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future FELReRERDPERMEEHE
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s EZRERENEE-

consolidated statement of cash flows as
cash flows from financing activities.

Interesting-
bearing Shareholder’s
borrowings loan Total
AEEE BRER @zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR AREBTT
(note 18) (note 17)
(Mi=E18) (BaE17)
At 1 January 2017 —E-t§¥-A-H 720,159 120,367 840,526
Changes from financing HEREREZEE:
cash flows:
Proceeds from new loans MERZEHE 104,000 104,000
Repayment of loans BEER (251,000) (251,000)
Total changes from financing BEHSRECEHER
cash flows (147,000) (147,000)
Exchange adjustments ERFE (7,935) (7,886) (15,821)

Interest charge reclassified ENERERNAEKE
as loan 2,301 2,301

At 31 December 2017 RZF¥—-tE+-A=+-H 565,224 114,782 680,006
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17 SHAREHOLDER’S LOAN 17 BRRER
On 29 November 2011, the Company issued RZE——F+—A=Z+hIHB KRFHE
convertible bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”) in the 1725 A% %8 5124,800,000/% 7T 2 7] 8
aggregate principal amount of HK$124,800,000. BES ([AIERES]) - AIEBRESH

The subscriber of the Convertible Bonds is
Amber International Investment Co., Ltd. (“Amber
International”), the immediate holding company of
the Company.

The Convertible Bonds matured on 29 November
2016 (“Maturity Date”). Amber International had
not exercised the conversion option prior to
the Maturity Date. The Company also did not
make any redemption upon the maturity of the
Convertible Bonds. In accordance with the written
confirmations from Amber International on 29
November 2016 and 27 December 2016, the
outstanding principal and interest payable of the
Convertible Bonds on the Maturity date became
repayable on demand by Amber International, and
interests on outstanding principal was charged
at 2% per annum after Maturity Date unless
agreed otherwise thereafter. Accordingly, the
outstanding principal amount of HK$124,800,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB111,635,000)
and outstanding interest payable of HK$9,762,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB8,732,000) on
Maturity Date were reclassified as shareholder’s
loan under current liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December
2016.

On 31 December 2017, the Company entered
into a long-term loan agreement with Amber
International that the above outstanding principal
amount of Convertible Bonds of HK$124,800,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB111,635,000),
outstanding interest payable of HK$9,762,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB8,732,000)
on Maturity Date and additional interest charge
of HK$2,753,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB2,301,000) on outstanding principal from
the Maturity Date to 30 December 2017 were
transferred to long-term shareholder’s loan
at an interest rate of 4.9% per annum from
31 December 2017 to 30 December 2022.
The shareholder’s loan will become due on
30 December 2022. As at 31 December
2017, the balance of shareholder’'s loan was
HK$137,315,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB114,782,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18

B %5 R 2k B 5

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 18 FTEfEE
2017 2016
—B—t5 Pkt
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT PN S
Current B H#A
Secured bank loans (i) BHEMBITEK() 38,000
Unsecured loans from related parties 5 # B8 3% 5 & 7% ([ 5£24)
(note 24) 20,000
Current portion of non-current JERN B IK IR IR 1T B Y
unsecured bank loans Bl HR B 2> 22,500
Current portion of non-current FE BN EA fh A 3 5 B AR Y
unsecured bank loans guaranteed EIRWIETERN
by a related party (ii) B HA 26 5 (i) 74,500 71,500
Current portion of non-current JERNE A E S ERN
unsecured loans from BVHAER 5 (Fi5E24)
a related party (note 24) 128,724 261,659
253,224 413,659
Non-current FEENEA
Secured bank loans (i) BHEMBITEK() 25,000
Unsecured bank loans EIMMIFITER 10,000
Unsecured bank loans guaranteed A& 5 IR
by a related party (ii) | IR 1T E ) 197,000 271,500
Unsecured loans from a related party 5 # B 3& 5 & 7% ([t 5£24)
(note 24) 115,000 -
312,000 306,500
565,224 720,159
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥ 7= MY =

18 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 18 FTEBE (£)

(Continued)

()  There are no secured bank loans as at 31 i) RZE—tEF+-A=1+—HIE
December 2017. The secured bank loans as EEBBITER T —RF+=
at 31 December 2016 were secured by the A=+—BMEEHBRITERAT
following assets: P& E(EE R -

2017 2016
“E—tF Emayagd
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTIT PN S

Carrying amounts of assets: SEREE:

Property, plant and equipment R 175,571

Lease prepayments ENES 9,877
(i) The bank loans are guaranteed by China (i) ZERTEFHFREBEMEZERER

Wanxiang Holding Co., Ltd. (“Wanxiang AR ([&mER]) (RABIM &L

Holding”), an ultimate controlling party of the ERT)ER

Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥ 2= MY &

18 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 18 FTEMEE (£)
(Continued)
(i)  The Group’s interest-bearing borrowings are (i) AEEFEBEENERBET

repayable as follows:

2016
“¥—tF kgt

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT NG

Within 1 year —FNR 253,224 413,659
Over 1 year but less than 2 years #BiE—FEMERN 87,500 74,500
Over 2 years but less than 5 years BB FERFR 224,500 218,500

Over 5 years BilAF - 13,500

312,000 306,500

565,224 720,159

19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 10 ENESREMEE

2017 2016
“¥—tF kg

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT PN

Trade and bill payables BB ZREREMNEE 2,564 2,431
Other payables and accrued expenses H fth &~ 5018 & fE 51 5 % 43,841 55,584

46,405 58,015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %5 R Ak B 5

19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the ageing analysis of
trade and bill payables of the Group based on the
invoice date, is as follows:

19 BNESRHEMFIE (&)

W_ZE—+F+-_A=+—H AEEE
NESFBEREMNEERIZEZAEAE
RERER DATLO T -

2017 2016
—E—tF e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARS T NS

Within 3 months =EAR 1,990 900
Over 3 months but less than 6 months #8i& =& A 1B/~ @ B K 104 87
Over 6 months but less than 1 year  HBiBENEAEB—FR 470 1,444

2,564 2,431

20 DEFERRED REVENUE

20 EIEW R

2017 2016
—E—tF Py
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT PN A

Government grants BT 8 Bh

12,013 10,464

The government grants are recognised as income
over the periods necessarily to match them with
the related costs of assets constructed which they
are intended to compensate over the periods and
in the proportion in which depreciation on those
assets is charged.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21

The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(@) Movements in components of equity

B %5 % 2k B 5

21 EXR -#HEERRE
(a) #EZEBHZEE
AEBGEAESRS DD EPERER
B THEENGEAERESH R
KRR RSB ETRERY

consolidated statement of changes in equity. BEFBOT:
Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out
below:
The Company xag
Share Share  Contributed Capital  Translation Accumulated Total
capital premium surplus reserve reserve losses equity
RA  ROEE BARE  AXBE 2 EXEE  RHER et
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
WE  ARETT ARETR ARETRT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2016 RZB-~E-R-BHEH 40,149 114,863 358,044 26,065 (6,011) (173,083) 360,027
Changes in equity for 2016: —E-REEREE:
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - (20,296) (20,296)
Other comprehensive income E2ERA - - - - 6,345 - 6,345
Total comprehensive income FR2ENNEE
for the year - - - - 6,345 (20,296) (13,951)
Dividends approved in respect of T EMAEERE
previous year 21(d)(ii) - (11,620) - - - - (11,620)

Balance at 31 December 2016
and 1 January 2017

Changes in equity for 2017:
Loss for the year
QOther comprehensive income

RZB-"E+=-A=+-BER
—¥-tE-R-HNER

SE-tEEREY:
EREA
EfpzEHA

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Dividends approved in respect of
previous year

EREENAEE

Balance at 31 December 2017

R-F-tF+-A=+-8H
1]

40,149 103,243 358,044 26,065 (193,379)

- (12667)
(6,137) o

(6,137) (12,667

(12,013)

40,149 91,230 358,044 26,065 (5,803)  (206,046)
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21 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 21 BEX -REERE (£)
(Continued)
(b) Share capital (b) K&
2017 2016
—F-t£ —E-RF
No. of Amount No. of Amount
Note shares HK$’000 shares HK$'000
it ] &8
Bt =% k& E THET R &R FTET
Authorised: BE:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each SR EE0.105 T2 E@RK 1,000,000,000 (LRl 1,000,000,000 100,000
2017 2016
—3-t§ —E-R%E
Amount Amount
Ordinary shares, No. of Amount  equivalent to No. of Amount  equivalent to
issued and fully paid shares HK$'000 RMB’000 shares HK$'000 RMB’000
HiE R b &E  SEEER ¢E  2EASR
EETRERE BH#E TERT ARETRT BOE ] THT ARETx
At 1 January R—-A—H 458,600,000 45,860 CREER 458,600,000 45,860 40,149
At 31 December Rt-A=+-H 458,600,000 45,860 CEEER 458,600,000 45,860 40,149
(c) Reserves (c) &
(i) Share premium () KRaE
The application of the share premium B aERENERAXAESES
account is governed by the Companies RNAVEHRE °

Law of the Cayman Islands.

(i) Capital reserve (i) BEXFE
Capital reserve represents the amount EARRERBRIEM20) (V)T
allocated to the unexercised equity B ERESBEAMNSFEE
component of Convertible Bonds WRA AR EIT 2 AIERES
issued by the Company recognised in MARTTEEZBOES NS
accordance with the accounting policy EE

adopted for Convertible Bonds in note

2(i)(v).
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21 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(c) Reserves (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Merger reserve

Merger reserve represents the excess
of the aggregate of paid-in capital of
the subsidiaries comprising the Group
pursuant to a reorganisation completed
in June 2009 for the Listing (the
“Reorganisation”) of the Group over the
consideration paid by the Company,
representing the nominal value of the
shares issued by the Company in
exchange thereof.

Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus represents the
excess of the fair value of the shares
of Amber Deneng, Amber Jingxing
and Amber Bluesky determined on the
basis of the consolidated net assets
of Amber Deneng, Amber Jingxing
and Amber Bluesky at the date of the
Reorganisation over the nominal value
of the shares issued by the Company in
exchange thereof.

Statutory surplus reserve

Statutory surplus reserves were
established in accordance with the
relevant PRC rules and regulations
and the articles of association of those
companies comprising the Group
which are established in the PRC until
the reserve balance reached 50% of
their registered capital. Appropriations
to the reserves were approved by the
respective boards of directors.

B 5 ¥R 3% P =

21 EXR -HEEKRE (£)

(c) fitE (&)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

B
EHFEEEASEETHER
ARBEAEER —_TTNF
NAREmER2EMA ([E
ADEFNBRABBEBRAN
NAFTRAE (AR R BIHES
RBFRBETRONEE) 28
B

A & B2

BABBRIERBIRIDEEE I
HRERIINERGRBEER
EEEMHRIAERE RIRE
RIRHERBRONEHB B
NP EBBARRERZIMP
BITROWEEZE -

EEBERHE
AEBBFEEERETEEH
FTE BRI A R FE R B AL Y
AREEBE NS RARNEBER
MARY BEEHBEHRED
5 F B ANE50% 4 Lk ©
BRACERESTSHE-
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21 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(c) Reserves (Continued)

(v) Statutory surplus reserve

(Continued)

For the entity concerned, statutory
surplus reserves can be used to make
good previous years’ losses, if any,
and may be converted into capital
in proportion to the existing equity
interests of investors, provided that the
balance after such conversion is not
less than 25% of the registered capital.

(d) Dividends

()

Dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company
attributable to the year

EX-EERRE ()

(c) fi&fE (&)
(v) ZEEZBEHE (&)

BRI R B HETE BRI E A
AREHENEFENER (I
B) MARREERGRE
Ll EBmmKER  EHRE
MERTELOREMELREN

25% °
(d K8
() FAEMETLGEDZRFE
B’E

2017 2016
—T—CF ks
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT BN =W
Final dividend proposed after the WEBERIRER
reporting date of HK$0.03 RER B8 %0.03%8 T
(2016: HK$0.03) per share (ZZE—/RF:0.03%7L) 12,194

The final dividend proposed after the
end of the reporting period has not
been recognised as a liability at the end
of the reporting period.
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21 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 21 EX -RBEERE (£)
(Continued)
(d) Dividends (Continued) (d) KR (&)
(ii) Dividends payable to equity (i) PRERBAELSHIEME
shareholders of the Company NEEBRRE L REE
attributable to the previous R’E

financial year, approved and paid
during the year

2017 2016

b DA T RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR BN S

Final dividend in respect of the RE R L&
previous financial year, F—UBEERBRE
approved and paid during HR0.03%B T
the year of HK$0.03 (ZE—RF:0.03%7T)

(2016: HK$0.03) per share 11,620
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21 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 21 EXR-RBEREKRE (£)
(Continued)
(e) Capital management (e) BEXER

The Group’s primary objectives when
managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost
of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain
a balance between the higher equity
shareholders’ return that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and makes adjustments to
the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure
on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio
is calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. Net debt is calculated as total debt
(including all interest-bearing borrowings as
well as shareholder’s loan, as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position)
less cash and cash equivalents. Total
capital is calculated as equity attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company, as
shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position, plus net debt. The Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, issue new shares, return
capital to shareholders or sell assets to
reduce debt.
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CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)
(e) Capital management (Continued)

The gearing ratio as at 31 December was as
follows:

21

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %5 % 2k B 5

EXR-RBRRE (&)

() EXEE (&)
RT-A=T—HWNAEBEEARLX
LN

Gearing ratio

BEEARLE

22 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial risk management
Overview

The Group has exposure to the following risks
arising from financial instruments:

o credit risk
o liquidity risk
o market risk

This note presents information about the Group’s
exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring
and managing risk, and the Group’s management
of capital.

(@) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to
the Group if a customer or counterparty
to a financial instrument fails to meet
its contractual obligations, and arises
principally from the Group’s receivables from
customers.

22

2017 2016
“E—tF ey
RMB’000 RMB’000
PN B AR T
53.68% 59.80%
TR T E
BA 75 B b 5 1B
i

AEBEHHEKESRITANATRER

e [EERR
s RBETER
e TIZAR

M 25 AR B S % IR A
R AEEFENEERRNER K
KPR UERAREEHEREE -

(a) EERE
EERRESRIEANTPAXZS
HWHRABITAHEEMS AEEE
XN KEERR TBRAASE
[ fiE Wy & P 3RE o
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22 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Overview (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)
Exposure to credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to trade and other receivables.
Management has a credit policy in place
and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables,
individual credit evaluations are performed
on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability
to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are
due within 10 to 30 days from the date of
billing. Debtors with balances that are more
than the credit term given by the Group are
generally requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk
is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry or country in which the
customers operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise
when the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers. At the end of the
reporting period, 98.34% (2016: 100%) of
the total trade receivables was due from
the Group’s largest customer, including its
subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Overview (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)
Exposure to credit risk (Continued)

The Group does not provide any guarantees
which would expose the Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of
the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising
from trade and other receivables are set out
in note 15.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will
encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset.

The Group’s approach to managing liquidity
is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities
when they are due, under both normal
and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to
the Group’s reputation.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following are the remaining contractual
maturities of financial liabilities at the
reporting date.

B 75 ¥R 3% P =

22 I A (&)

MBRMER (&)
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22 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 22 @I A (&)
Financial risk management (Continued) MBREEER (Z)
Overview (Continued) HEt (&)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) FHEEERME (Z)
The amounts are gross and undiscounted, ZEHBAEE BARLINE B8
and include estimated interest payments and ERRIESS RN ENE WS E RNk
exclude the impact of netting agreements: VB

At 31 December 2017

RZ¥-t£+ZA=+-H
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ARFERRZRS AL
Morethan ~ Morethan ~ Morethan ~ More than
Within ~ 3months ~ 6months 9 months 1 year
3months or  butlessthan  butless than  but less than  but less than ~ More than Carrying
(0B ondemand  6months 9 months 1 year 5years 5 years Total amount

AR  Z@EAM  AEAR  AERA  BE-%

UGN SRERE BONAER BORABA BOR-F EOREE  BEEE ot REE
RMBO00  RMB'000  RMB'00D  RMBO00  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000
ARRTR  ARRFR ARETR ARBTR ARRFR ARRIR ARBTR ARRTR

Interest-bearing borrowings B fEE ) 41,784 24,501 174,571 33,861 331,117 606,514 565,204
Trade and other payables EREAREMTE 18,743 - 18,152 14510 - 46,405 46,405
Shareholder's loan REER - - - - 142,903 142,903 114,782

60,527 24,521 187,723 48,311 474,680 795,822 726,411

At 31 December 2016
RZB-7~E+ZA=1-H

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

ANERERRZRER
Morethan  Morethan  Morethan  More than
Within 3 months 6 months 9 months 1 year
Jmonths or  butlessthan  but less than ~ butless than  but lessthan ~ More than Carrying
on demand 6 months 9 months 1 year 5 years 5 years Total amount

“EAn  ZEAM AEARM ABAR BE-F
IRERE EINAER BIRMAER  BIR-F  EIREE  BBRE it Ff
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMWB'OOD  RMB0OO  RMBOOD  RMBIOOD  RMBI00
ARBTR ARMTT ARETR ARBTR  ARETR  ARMTR AREIT  ARETR

Interest-bearing borrowings 5t BEE 41,024 4430 308807 28882 307207 14,161 784,421 720,159
Trade and other payables EfEAREMTE 18,336 - 7,876 31,603 - - 58,015 58,015
Shareholder's loan REER - - - 122,774 - - 122,774 120367

59,360 44,320 336,683 183,459 321,221 14,161 965,210 808,541
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22 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Overview (Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

(c)

(i)

In respect of interest-bearing borrowings as at 31
December 2017, the principals and related interest
expenses due within 3 months or on demand of
RMB41,784,000 had been repaid in the first quarter
of 2018. And the Group additionally borrowed
interest-bearing borrowings of RMB6,000,000 from
Wanxiang Finance, a fellow subsidiary of the Group, in
the first quarter of 2018.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market
prices, such as foreign exchange rates and
interest rates, will affect the Group’s income
or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control
market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while optimising the return.

()

Currency risk

RMB is not freely convertible into
foreign currencies. All foreign exchange
transactions involving RMB must take
place through the People’s Bank of
China or other institutions authorised
to buy and sell foreign exchange. The
exchange rate adopted for the foreign
exchange transactions are the rates of
exchange quoted by the People’s Bank
of China that are determined largely by
supply and demand.

B 75 ¥R 3% P =

22 I A (&)

MBREEER (Z)

HFatk (&)

(b) RENEEEE (&)

0] R-_E—tF+A=+—BZFEE

BfE  ZEANSREREEENZA
& R AE R B 5 X A R %41,784,0007T
BERZZE-—N\FE—FENH - R=ZFT—N
EE—F AKENTAARAR KK B
AR BRMBEEMIGEBEEARE
6,000,0007T ©

(c) ThizEK
MR IETE (B0 5N E IE R K
ME)BBZEARBWRARAE
ERMTABENRR THRRE
EMERR/ECERNFAR T2
RESHTHERBRENZIBENA-

() EXELE
AR BB BRAINE -

BT RARENINER 519
ABETEARRITHEME
REEBIMNENEBETT S
[E 2 5 R A T B R ARTT P it
MER MxFEXRTERM
KERE °
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B 75 2= M o

22 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Overview (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(c)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)
Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s
exposure at the end of the reporting
period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate.

22 &R IR (#

MERMER (&)

#EaE (&)

(c) TmERR (&)

() EEmELE%E)

B b
TRAAEERREMFE
HEAEE R BIIEE G aT
ENEHRRIEEXRBEMES
B L o

Interest-bearing borrowings

Shareholder’s loan

Net exposure

2017 2016
—E-tE —E-RF
Us$ HK$ Us$ HK$
£ it eV B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
INL-E N1 ARETT ARETL
TREE 128,724 - 136,659 -
BREER 114,782 - 120,367
FRR 128,724 114,782 136,659 120,367
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B 75 ¥ 2= MY &

22 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 22 EWMIA(#

Financial risk management (Continued) MBREER (Z)
Overview (Continued) HEak ()
(c) Market risk (Continued) (c) THiBEE (&)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) () EXEpEZ)
Exposure to currency risk (Continued) ExEf (&)

The following are US$ and HK$
exchange rates to RMB during the year
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016:

LTRBEE-_ZE—th-F
—RFTZA=T—HILF
B - ZETRBETHARKE

K-

=

Average rate

FHYEE

Reporting date spot rate
REBMHER

2017 2016 2017 2016
b 2t —TF Eeligd i —T-AF

RMB’000 RMB'000 SSRGLYIHV RMB'000
L AP ARKTT BN ARETT

uss e
HK$ BT

6.7518 6.5342

0.8664 0.8359
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22 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Overview (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(c)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

A one percent strengthening/weakening
of the RMB against the following
currencies at 31 December would have
affected profit after tax by the amounts
shown below. This analysis assumes
that all other variables, in particular
interest rates, remain constant. The
analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2016.

Us$

HK$ BT

188 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED ¥EIHaERER A A

22 &R IR (#
HERSERE (&)
ik (4E)

hisERE (Z)

(c)

8-t%

Increase/

(i)

2017

(decrease)
in foreign
exchange

rates

HPEEFERE
#m,/
(D)

EmpE (&)
RTZA=+—H AR¥X
THEBEFEXRZE1%E R
TS BEERBAGF 5%
DI TIRFTA E A2 (55
B R ) e RN EE e ) AT IR
R EEE T —XNEMRA
E—%e

2016

ZTRE
(Decrease)/ (Decrease)/
increase in Increase/ increase in
profit after (decrease) profit after
tax and in foreign tax and
retained exchange retained
earnings rates earnings
BB iNGRTK
¥ R MR
RERFN SNEER  REBEF
(BL)/ #m/ (R2)/
LY CRD) #n
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETTT
(965) 1% (1,025)
965 (1%) 1,025
(861) 1% (903)
861 (1%) 903
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22 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Overview (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(c)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk
arises primarily from cash and cash
equivalents and interest-bearing
borrowings. The Group manages its
interest rate exposure by maintaining a
prudent mix of fixed and variable rate
borrowings.

The Group is not exposed to significant
interest rate risk for cash and cash
equivalents because the interest rates
of cash at bank are not expected to
change significantly.

B 75 ¥R 3 P =

22 RIA(#&)

MFEEER (&)
#Eat (&)
(c) TmERR (&)
(i) FIZEERE
AEENMERRERREER
e hBReEFBYRFEBE
AEBBEBEREENTE R
FREEHEAEREAEEYHA
KER -

AEEYERALRALEE
YT R R B AR RER T
BREHRTREFETEE
BEREH-
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B %5 Rk MY 5

22 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Overview (Continued)

(c) Market risk (Continued)

(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period,
the interest rate profile of the Group’s
interest-bearing financial instruments
was as follows:

22 €®MIA(£)

MERMER (&)
#EE (&)
(c) TimERR (&)
(ii) FIEmLE ()
RBEHR AEENGFER

BMTAMARARIMT:

Fixed rate borrowings: TEMEE:
Loans from related parties BEREFNEE
Shareholder’s loan RRER

Bank loans RITEE
Variable rate borrowings: BOEE:
Bank loans HRITEE

BRETNEER

Loans from related parties

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed
rate borrowings

The Group does not account for any
fixed rate financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. Therefore, a
change in interest rates at the reporting
date would not affect profit or loss.

170 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED ¥EIHgERER A A

2017 2016
—2-tf§ NS
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BRFE ERA=
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
ARETT AREFT
4.45% 128,724 4.45% 136,659
4.9% 114,782 4.9% 120,367
- - 4.35% 38,000
4.9% 271,500 4.9% 400,500
3.92% - 4.9% R 3.92% - 4.35% 145,000
680,006 840,526

EBEEH L F ARSI

AEEYEBBBRRAFE

REBLREAE FURNEK
TEMNFEEH G T EE
E?\-O
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22 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Overview (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(ii)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for
variable rate borrowings

At 31 December 2017, it is estimated
that a general increase/decrease of
100 basis points in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would
have decreased/increased the Group’s
profit after tax and consolidated equity
by approximately RMB2,567,000 (2016:
RMB4,018,000).

The sensitivity analysis above
indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s profit after tax and
consolidated equity that would arise
assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied
to re-measure those floating rate non-
derivative instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk at the end
of the reporting period. The impact
on the Group’s profit after tax and
consolidated equity is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense
of such a change in interest rates. The
analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2016.

Fair value

The carrying amounts of significant financial

assets and liabilities approximate their
respective fair values as at 31 December
2017 and 2016.

B 5 ¥R 3% P =

22 TRIA (&)

MEEGEER (£)

#a (2)

(c) TWiZEE (&)

(i) FIEELE (&)

REEERIE 2R E R E D
Vg
RZEBE—+tF+_A=+—
B At A =EE AT
FH100MEE 2 - M AT A E fh &
R TE  AIAREFEBABR
BaR A KA ESE R, 18
m# AR E2 567,000t (=
T —RF: AR®4,018,000
JC) °

EXBRESNER RER
BEHFEANEEELEY
WRHERFEBRAREN
BEAKEMFNSASERY
Ram 8 REROEETE
FOTET A AIRNKBERRHIE
i AP SN Sl L
HAKBRBRRH R #E
BNRELA BN XEHE
NERXNFERZE DK
AREER T —XEMRKA
B

@ AFE
W= LER=F—AF+=A
=+ B BEASRAERAEN
BEERLSEAFEAE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥ 7= MY =

23 COMMITMENTS 23 K¥E
(a) Capital commitments outstanding at (a) R=FT—tE+=-A=+—H ¥
31 December 2017 not provided for in BNGAMBRFBERESH
the consolidated financial statements BEERRE FBEOT:

were as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF Pt
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT PNE S

Contracted for EET4) 2,603 4,169
Authorised but not contracted for B #{B KT 18,983 909
21,586 5,078
(b) At 31 December 2017, the total future (b) R=F—tFE+=-A=+—H'HR
minimum lease payments under BATUREEESHERMBEREK
non-cancellable operating lease are REHEEMFREFENT:

payable as follows:

2017 2016
ZE—tF Eellags
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT PN S

Within 1 year —FR 1,322 513
After 1 year but within 5 years —FREAFNH 765 770

2,087 1,283
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B % AR Y &

24 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 24 BERIRS
For the year ended 31 December 2017, BHE-_Z—tF+-_A=+T—BH1LtEFE"
transactions with the following parties are BETIWATZRGBEREBELIRSG AT
considered as related party transactions. The BAEBEHETIBEIRFANTER
following is a summary of the principal related BRHRGHE-

party transactions carried out by the Group with
the below related parties for the year.

Name of party Relationship

FES &8 B 1%

Amber International Immediate holding company of the Company
3% 30 B B RRRNEEERAR

Wanxiang Holding Ultimate controlling party of the Company
Bz 2NN OB 34324 )

Puxing Energy Intermediate parent company of the Company
EREL ARANES AR

Wanxiang Finance Fellow subsidiary

& m A EESL=PNG)
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B %5 R Ak B 5

24 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 24 FBE
(Continued)
(a) Significant related party transactions (a)

and balances with related parties

In addition to cash deposits in Wanxiang
Finance as disclosed in note 16(a),
shareholder’s loan from Amber International
as disclosed in note 17 and certain bank
loans guaranteed by Wanxiang Holding
as disclosed in note 18, other significant
transactions between the Group and the
above related parties during the year ended
31 December 2017 are as follows:

BFR5 (%)

HEEHETHEXRERXS
R &R

BRI K aE16 (a) BER MR & [/ 75
IR RE 17 ENRE
IRIABIFR M B R B R XY 518
BEN BB RZERERNE TR
ERON RBE_T—tF+_A
=t BLEFE AEEHE AR
BHHBRZ ST

2017 2016
Z¥—tF kg

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT NS

Loans from RKEUTHAESHER
Wanxiang Finance B ® 70,000 25,000
Puxing Energy TE2FEE 10,000 8,754
Loans repaid to BEERFLUTHES
Wanxiang Finance &\ ot 40,000 5,000
Puxing Energy T2 e 20,000 -
Interest income FIBUTA
Wanxiang Finance &\ 8 7% 127
Interest expenses FIBRHX
Wanxiang Finance & A B 75 524
Puxing Energy T EER 11,331
Amber International BRI R 205
Settlement of commercial bills LI TFEEFEMNZ

that accepted by EEmEER
Wanxiang Finance & M5 20,000
Withdrawal of fixed deposits EUTHRESRRERER

with
Wanxiang Finance & A Bt 75 5,000
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24 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(a) Significant related party transactions
and balances with related parties

(Continued)

The balances arising from the significant
transactions between the Group and the
above related parties as at 31 December

2017 are as follows:

B %5 R 2k B 5

24 BBEAXREG (#&)

(a) EEAEFETHEXMELIXS
R (&)

RZFB—tF+-_A=+—8 XK
SHEFABETNERRGME
EREERINT

2017 2016
ZE—tF Eelclags
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET PN S

Amber International PRI EERR
Shareholder’s loan RERE R 114,782 120,367
Dividend payable BRI E 11,326 11,326
Interest payable FERTFIE 15 205
126,123 131,898

Wanxiang Finance BEMB
Interest-bearing borrowings FTEBE 20,000
Interest payable FERFIE 10
Demand deposits & BT 73,539
93,549

Puxing Energy =BT
Interest-bearing borrowings FTEEE 243,724 261,659
Interest payable J& - 7] 2 13,152 7,876
256,876 269,535
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B %5 R Ak MY 5

24 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b) Key management personnel
remuneration

Remuneration for key management
personnel of the Group, including amounts
paid to the Company’s directors as
disclosed in note 9 and certain of the highest
paid employees as disclosed in note 10, is
as follows:

24 BEBERRS (#)

(b) EEEBASWNE

AEBEI2EBRAEME (BFEW
M FEOR TR B A R R E S MM
10N ENETERSHEE XN
MEBAEN)MT :

2017 2016
—g—t5 [REEWE
RMB’000 RMB’000
IN-L S ARE TR

Short-term employee benefits MEEBERF
Post-employment benefits BB R

2,900 3,619
131 177

3,031 3,796

Total remuneration is included in “personnel
costs” (see note 6(b)).
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ME@BAATEIRA] (R
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25 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 25
FINANCIAL POSITION

N 7 2 T A A AR R &

2017 2016
—T—tF kg

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
IEA AR¥Trxt PN R
Non-current assets ERHEE
Interests in subsidiaries AN oL Fa 557,849 602,552
Property, plant and equipment YL 13 -
557,862 602,552
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H {th e U 5x 78 555
Cash and cash equivalents HekBEaEEYD 20,260
20,815
Current liabilities REBERE
Shareholder’s loan ERE R 17 - 120,367
Interest-bearing borrowings FFEEE 128,724 136,659
Trade and other payables BB S RkEMKIE 25,820 31,885
154,544 288,911
Net current liabilities REBEETFE (139,441) (268,096)
Total assets less current liabilities & &Rk E & & 418,421 334,456
Non-current liabilities ERHERE
Shareholder’s loan fREEH 17 114,782 —
NET ASSETS BEFE 303,639 334,456
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARGEE 21(a)
Share capital &N 21(b) 40,149 40,149
Reserves @ 263,490 294,307
TOTAL EQUITY HER 303,639 334,456
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26

27

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

After the reporting date, the directors proposed a
final dividend on 27 March 2018. Further details
are disclosed in note 21(d).

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE
CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 December 2017, the directors consider the
immediate and ultimate controlling party of the
Group to be Amber International and Wanxiang
Holding, respectively, which are incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands and the PRC respectively.
These entities do not produce financial statements
available for public use.

178 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED ¥tIHAERE R A A

26

27

REMRIFARESE

Rk A8 EEEERN 2 —/\F=
A-++BRNEKREKE  E—FFBW
TRKTFE21(d) °

HEERGRERS

EERAE RZTE—+tF+=-A=1+—
A AEENEERSKERF DR AR
NBEREREMER (DR EBREZHS
RABFMAT) c 2SRRI EERA
NEAERHTBRE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017

Up to the date of issue of these financial
statements, the IASB has issued a number
amendments, new standards and interpretations
which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2017 and which have not been
adopted in these financial statements. These
include the following which may be relevant to the
Group:

28

B 5 ¥R 3% P =

Eraﬁmmhﬂa@&m ;J ~
AEARGEERNAESE

HEZSHBRETZEAE  BE g%
AlZEgEmMmBE_S—tF+_A
ST RLEFERAREREREZEN
BMKRET R Z ZTHEET - Fral 8|
N2E At EAEEEEERFE TS
I8 :

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

BLUTE#ASH 2%
B G B & 5t B £ 3

IFRS 9, Financial instruments
BRI IR RNFEON 2/ T A

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

1 January 2018
—N\&E—H—H

1 January 2018

BB B B & RIS 165% - LS A Mz —N\¥—HA—H
IFRIC 22, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration 1 January 2018
BARR B1 165 S 5 MR RR N5 — 225 - SNE X G IR TEM B g e =

IFRS 16, Leases
BB S 2R B1659% - HE

IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments

BRI S S e NS — R85 TP HWEEL T HEE T

1 January 2019
—NF—H—H

1 January 2019
—h&E—H—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% s A< Y &

28 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 28 BEE—tF+ZA=1T—HL

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these
amendments, new standards and interpretations
is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified
some aspects of the new standards which may
have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements. Further details of the
expected impacts are discussed below. While the
assessment has been substantially completed
for IFRS 9 and IFRS 15, the actual impacts upon
the initial adoption of the standards may differ as
the assessment completed to date is based on
the information currently available to the Group,
and further impacts may be identified before
the standards are initially applied in the Group’s
interim financial report for the six months ended
30 June 2018. The Group may also change
its accounting policy elections, including the
transition options, until the standards are initially
applied in the financial report.
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FECEMERERERNERT 5
AEAIRZENARESE (&)

AREBIEFFEZFER ML NERE
RERERHRBEREROTE - E)t
AREECHER  Fa ER LT HAIEE
HEAMBRREKEATE -BHRFE
ZE—FHBAWPAT - BESRER I
HEERNEON M BRI SR E ERIE15
SRETTZ R B RE D B 7R - BIRERA
HERUZBERTEXGHMTE AR
LS ERAMFELERASES B A
ARERET MRZFEAEREAR
AEBBEE_ZT-N\FXRA=1TBILRX
Az RER AJRE S HIRE —
FRE - RNEBEA S ENESFEE
BE BEBEREE BEEAFEAER
FERR A BHRENR -



28 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

IFRS 9, Financial instruments

IFRS 9 will replace the current standard
on accounting for financial instruments,
IAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement. IFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement
of financial assets, including the measurement
of impairment for financial assets and hedge
accounting. On the other hand, IFRS 9
incorporates without substantive changes the
requirements of IAS 39 for recognition and
derecognition of financial instruments and the
classification and measurement of financial
liabilities.

IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2018. The Group has assessed
that the new financial instruments standard is not
likely to have significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥R 3 P =

28 BE-ZE—tH+=-A=+—HL

FECEMEERERNERT 5
AEAIRZENARESE (#)

EIPRAA TR RO £HM T A
BIFR B 5REERIFOR MR E R
TEEHRENENEEEBKRES
HERIEIK oM T A HRKIE-
R BREERERU DAL ESH
BERREMEERENENRYIT S
BRIBSIAFRE - 7 —hH - BRI BEHR
SEANFOIRMA B ST ERE395% A
ALK IEReRTANEREE
DELFTENRE  BXYRUBEBREE

BB SIS LRI BORN =T — N\ F—
A —HSAERRG 2 FEMBEER - A&
BT EEMTMBREER RARET
AARHAEENMBRREETAY
@,
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B 75 i Y &

28 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 28 BEE—tF+ZA=1T—HL

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework
for recognising revenue from contracts with
customers. IFRS 15 will replace the existing
revenue standards, IAS 18, Revenue, which
covers revenue arising from sale of goods and
rendering of services, and IAS 11, Construction
contracts, which specifies the accounting for
revenue from construction contracts.

Based on the assessment completed to date, the
Group has identified the following areas which are
expected to be affected:

Timing of revenue recognition

The Group’s revenue recognition policies are
disclosed in note 2(r). Currently, revenue from the
sale of goods is generally recognised when the
risks and rewards of ownership have passed to
the customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the
customer obtains control of the promised good
or service in the contract. IFRS 15 identifies 3
situations in which control of the promised good
or service is regarded as being transferred over

time:

(@)

When the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the
entity’s performance, as the entity performs;

When the entity’s performance creates or
enhances an asset (for example work in
progress) that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced;

When the entity’s performance does not
create an asset with an alternative use to the
entity and the entity has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to
date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %5 R Ak B 5

28 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continueq)

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do
not fall into any of these 3 situations, then under
IFRS 15 the entity recognises revenue for the
sale of that good or service at a single point in
time, being when control has passed. Transfer of
risks and rewards of ownership is only one of the
indicators that will be considered in determining
when the transfer of control occurs.

The Group has assessed that the new revenue

standard is not likely to have significant impact on
how it recognises revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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28 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 28 BEZE—tF+ZA=1T—HL

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

IFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 2(l), currently the Group
classifies leases into finance leases and operating
leases and accounts for the lease arrangements
differently, depending on the classification of the
lease. The Group enters into some leases as the
lessee.

IFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly
on the way that lessors account for their rights
and obligations under a lease. However, once
IFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no longer
distinguish between finance leases and operating
leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients,
lessees will account for all leases in a similar
way to current finance lease accounting, i.e. at
the commencement date of the lease the lessee
will recognise and measure a lease liability at
the present value of the minimum future lease
payments and will recognise a corresponding
“right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this
asset and liability, the lessee will recognise interest
expense accrued on the outstanding balance
of the lease liability, and the depreciation of the
right-of-use asset, instead of the current policy
of recognising rental expenses incurred under
operating leases on a systematic basis over the
lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee
can elect not to apply this accounting model to
short-term leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12
months or less) and to leases of low-value assets,
in which case the rental expenses would continue
to be recognised on a systematic basis over the
lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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28 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 28 BEE—tF+ZA=+—HL

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

IFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group'’s
accounting as a lessee of leases for properties,
plant and equipment which are currently classified
as operating leases. The application of the new
accounting model is expected to lead to an
increase in both assets and liabilities and to
impact on the timing of the expense recognition
in the statement of profit or loss over the period
of the lease. As disclosed in note 23(b), at 31
December 2017 the Group’s future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases amount to RMB2,087,000 (2016:
RMB1,283,000), among which RMB765,000 is
payable between 1 and 5 years after the reporting
date. Some of these amounts may therefore
need to be recognised as lease liabilities, with
corresponding right-of-use assets, once IFRS
16 is adopted. The Group will need to perform a
more detailed analysis to determine the amounts
of new assets and liabilities arising from operating
lease commitments on adoption of IFRS 16,
after taking into account the applicability of
the practical expedient and adjusting for any
leases entered into or terminated between now
and the adoption of IFRS 16 and the effects of
discounting.
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28 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2019. The standard
offers different transition options and practical
expedients, including the practical expedient to
grandfather the previous assessment of which
existing arrangements are, or contain, leases. If
this practical expedient is chosen, the Group will
apply the new definition of a lease in IFRS16 only
to contracts that are entered into on or after the
date of initial application. If the practical expedient
is not chosen, the Group will need to reassess
all of its decisions about which existing contracts
are, or contain, leases, using the new definition.
Depending on whether the Group elects to adopt
the standard retrospectively or follow a modified
retrospective method of recognising a cumulative-
effect adjustment to the opening balance of equity
at the date of initial application, the Group may or
may not need to restate comparative information
for any changes in accounting resulting from the
reassessment.

At this stage, the Group does not intend to adopt
the standard before its effective date.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MBERE

RESULTS

Revenue

Yoas

Profit/(loss) before taxation

BHAETN,/ (FR)

Income tax PG

Profit/(loss) for the year FERER/ (B])

Attributable to: YA LR :

Equity shareholders of RAAERRR
the Company

Non-controlling interests R ER

Profit/(loss) for the year FREF/ (BE)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Current assets MEBEE

Non-current assets FRBEE

Current liabilities MBEE

Non-current liabilities ERBERE

Net assets BEFE

Equity shareholders of KRAERRR
the Company

Non-controlling interests FERER

Total equity BRER

188 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED ¥:IHaERE R A A

2017
—F-tF
RMB’000
AREFR

348,364

59,999
(25,831)

34,168

2017
—E-tF
RMB’000
AREFR

125,763
1,158,106

299,629
462,367

521,873

521,339
534

521,873

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-HA=t+-HLEE

2016 2015 2014 2013
“F-Rf —F-Inf —T-ONF —T-Z=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETE AR®Tr ARETT ARETR
279,173 389,631 894,339 744,952
70,761 61,820 (147,636) 26,914
(29,310) (18,441) (1,389) (11,287)
41,451 43,379 (149,025) 15,627
41,703 43,691 (148,897) 15,627
(252) (312) (128) -
41,451 43,379 (149,025) 15,627
EEREE
As at 31 December
n+=B=+-H
2016 2015 2014 2013
“E-R¥ ZZ-1¥ ZT-NF =—T-=F
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AR%®TnT ARET:R
196,473 219,762 366,576 283,194
1,217,150 1,243,463 1,230,725 1,301,821
597,494 323,657 558,705 477,795
331,628 669,805 632,409 553,180
484,501 469,763 406,187 554,040
483,913 468,923 405,035 554,040
588 840 1,152 -
484,501 469,763 406,187 554,040
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